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Santa Rosa Plain Groundwater Sustainability Agency 
Board Meeting 

Date: February 13, 2020 
Time: 1:00 p.m. 

Location: Santa Rosa Utility Field Office  
Address: 35 Stony Point Rd, Santa Rosa, CA 95401 

www.santarosaplaingroundwater.org 

Agenda 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call

2. Public comment on matters not listed on the agenda but within the subject matter
jurisdiction of the board

3. Consent
a) Approve Minutes of December 12, 2019 Board Meeting
b) Approve Year-to-Date Financial Report

4. Directors/Subcommittee Report

5. Advisory Committee Report

6. Information Items
a) Groundwater Sustainability Plan and Sustainable Management Criteria update
b) Groundwater User Registration Program

7. Action Items
a) Fiscal Year 2018-19 Audit. Receive report from auditor and consider adoption of

audit.
b) Fiscal Year 2020-21 Budget. Review and approve preliminary Fiscal Year 2020-21

Budget.
c) GSA Board Advisory Committee Appointments. Seven of the 18 Advisory

Committee members are appointed by the Board. The following seats have been
vacated mid-term: one Rural Residential and one Environmental. Ad hoc
recommends an Environmental applicant be appointed and the Rural Residential
seat be advertised.

8. Administrator, Plan Manager and Legal Counsel Report

9. Adjournment

http://www.santarosaplaingroundwater.org/


Member Agency Directors Alternates 

City of Cotati Susan Harvey Mark Landman 

City of Rohnert Park Gina Belforte Pam Stafford 

City of Santa Rosa Tom Schwedhelm Vice-Chair Dick Dowd 

City of Sebastopol Michael Carnacchi Neysa Hinton 

County of Sonoma Shirlee Zane Susan Gorin 

Gold Ridge Resource Conservation District Joe Dutton Mel Sanchietti 

Independent Water Systems Evan Jacobs Michael Spielman 

Sonoma County Water Agency Lynda Hopkins Chair Susan Gorin 

Sonoma Resource Conservation District John Nagle Walt Ryan 

Town of Windsor Debora Fudge Dominic Foppoli 

Special Accommodations: If you have a disability which requires an accommodation, an alternative 
format, or requires another person to assist you while attending this meeting, please contact Ann 
DuBay, (707) 524-8378, as soon as possible to ensure arrangements for accommodation.  

Public Comment: Any member of the audience desiring to address the Board on a matter on the 
agenda: please complete a Speaker Card and hand it to the Clerk at the beginning of the meeting or 
prior to the time the Board Chair closes public comment on the item about which you wish to speak. 
When called by the Chair, please walk to the podium, state your name and make your comments. The 
public may comment on closed session items prior to the Board adjourning to closed session. In order so 
all interested parties have an opportunity to speak, please be brief and limit your comments to the 
subject under discussion. Each person is usually granted three minutes to speak; time limitations are at 
the discretion of the Chair. While the public is welcome to address the Board, under the Brown Act 
Board members may not deliberate or act on items not on the agenda, and generally may only listen. 

Meeting Documents: The associated documentation is available at the offices of the local agencies 
listed above and on the website at: www.santarosaplaingroundwater.org. Any changes to the date of 
the hearing, or any other updates will be noticed on the above website. For more information, please 
contact Andy Rodgers, arodgers@westyost.com. 
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Agenda Item: 3A 
Meeting Date: February 13, 2020 

Santa Rosa Plain Groundwater Sustainability Agency 
Board Meeting 

Regular Meeting Minutes - DRAFT 
Date: December 12, 2019 

Time: 4:00 p.m. 
Location: Finley Community Center 

2060 W. College Avenue, Santa Rosa 
www.santarosaplaingroundwater.org 

Note: Due to the City of Santa Rosa activating the Emergency Operations Center located at 35 Stony 
Point Road, Santa Rosa, this GSA Board meeting was held at the Finley Community Center in the 
auditorium.  These notes summarize the subjects discussed and the actions taken. Though the 
meeting was recorded, the poor auditorium acoustics rendered the recording inaudible in many 
places, so detailed notes were not able to be provided in these summary meeting minutes. 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call
Chairwoman Lynda Hopkins called the meeting to order at 1:08 p.m. Andy Rodgers took roll
call. Chairwoman Hopkins, Director Nagle, Director Dutton, Director Jacobs, Director
Harvey, Director Schwedhelm, Director Carnacchi, Director Fudge, and Director Stafford
(Alternate for Director Belforte) were present. Director Zane arrived 2:30 p.m. Others
present included Andy Rodgers, Administrator; Jay Jasperse, Plan Manager, Sonoma Water;
Marcus Trotta, Technical Staff, Sonoma Water; Simone Peters, minute-taker, West Yost.

2. Public comment on matters not listed on the agenda but within the subject
matter jurisdiction of the Board

None. 

3. Consent Calendar
a. Approve Minutes of August 8, 2019 Board Meeting
b. Approve GSA Board Meeting Calendar
c. Approve Year-to-Date Financial Report

No public comment. 
Director Jacobs moved to approve the consent calendar as presented, Director 
Schwedhelm seconded. Motion passed unanimously, 9-0-0 (Director Zane absent). 
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Agenda Item: 3A 
Meeting Date: February 13, 2020 

4. Directors/Subcommittee Report
Director Harvey commented on the all-GSA Recharge Workshop saying it was well attended
and there were good questions.
Director Schwedhelm thanked all the people who put the Re-charge workshop together.
Director Nagle appreciated the technical aspect of the GSA workshop, he found it to be very
valuable information.
Director Hopkins thanked the staff from all three GSAs for their work and attendance at the
workshop.
Andy Rodgers added the meeting was video-taped and would be available on the
www.sonomacountygroundwater.org website in the next few weeks. He also thanked staff
for putting the meeting together. 

5. Advisory Committee Report
Rue Furch gave an update of the last Advisory Committee meeting. She mentioned there
are currently 200 cannabis operations in the county, on a total of approximately 100 acres,
so it would seem the County isn’t being as inundated with cannabis operations as many had
originally feared.

6. Information items
a. Advisory Committee Appointment Process

Andy Rodgers mentioned that Sebastian Bertsch is moving from California so there
will be an open Environmental seat on the Advisory Committee in 2020. The Board-
appointed Advisory Committee members are comprised of two Environmental
representatives, two Rural Residential representatives, two Agricultural
representatives, and one Business representative. Rodgers has reviewed the
applications received in 2017 and advertised the position during November 2019.
To-date, four applications have been received and Rodgers would like to bring to the
next Board meeting for review and appointment.
Director Hopkins mentioned the idea of an ad hoc committee for discussing in a less
formal setting before presenting to the Board. Director Jacobs said it was the
process used for appointing the original appointments so it would make sense to do
it that way again.
Directors Hopkins, Harvey and Schwedhelm agreed to be ad hoc members of the
committee along with Advisory Chairman, Bob Anderson and Vice-Chairwoman, Rue
Furch.
Director Hopkins asked Rodgers to schedule a meeting for the ad hoc.

Public Comment 
Rue Furch asked that the ad hoc committee account for the applicants’ letters of support, 
so the community feels part of the process. 
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Agenda Item: 3A 
Meeting Date: February 13, 2020 

b. Groundwater Sustainability Plan Update
Jay Jasperse, Plan Manager, gave a brief status update of the Plan. To review, the
GSP has four components: 1) basin setting; 2) defining sustainability in the basin and
how to measure it; 3) describing the scope of projects: and 4) adopting the Plan. This
year was focused on the basin setting. They are currently in the process of
concluding the step of describing the basin setting and starting work on the second
and third components now. Work on assessing the need for and scoping potential
projects and actions will occur later in 2020 and in 2021. Some basins in other areas
of the State in critical overdraft are submitting plans now that will be a great
resource for the basins in Sonoma County.

Board Questions/Comments 
Director Nagle – Is there a need to designate 3.4 Management Areas? 

Response Jasperse – It is an option for us if is deemed appropriate in the Plan. 
Director Nagle – Would it be the Advisory Committee considering this going 
forward? 
Jasperse – Absolutely. The Advisory Committee will provide a recommendation 
on this for the Board to ultimately consider. 

Director Carnacchi – 5.0 Proposed Monitoring Program – are the new shallow monitoring 
wells installed to understand the interaction between surface and groundwater? 

Response Jasperse – Yes. 

Director Carnacchi – Sebastopol jurisdiction – expressed concerns, small area of SRP, I am 
wondering if we will be able to monitor the surface water?  

Jasperse – If data already exists, we will use it. GSA specifies to assess SGMA 
compliance in the basin as it exists today. We will need to do some additional 
monitoring in the basin for SGMA compliance. 
Director Carnacchi – What is the process? 
Jasperse – There are a couple of ways. We will be using computer models for 
where we have data gaps and for areas where we don’t have significant impacts. 

Director Carnacchi –The well closest to SRP15, is that well already in place? 
Jasperse – Yes, this is through DWR’s Technical Support Services (TSS) program. 
There are 22 wells total, 12 of which are in this basin. 
Director Carnacchi – That well is of interest to Sebastopol. Will it tell us how 
much flood water in this area is going into groundwater? 
Jasperse – For this program we are mostly interested in looking at lower flow, 
not flood flow. We are working with USGS to look at the flood flows through a 
separate study and the City of Santa Rosa is participating with some funding. 
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Agenda Item: 3A 
Meeting Date: February 13, 2020 

Director Carnacchi - Sonoma Water’s production wells, it would be nice to see the relation 
between our wells and Sonoma wells. Is there pumping data? 

Jasperse – Yes, we have historical data. 

Public Questions/Comments 
Comment by Mary Grace Pawson – The primary purpose of the SRP GSP is to comply with 
with SGMA within the Santa Rosa Plain and we should not focus our limited resources on 
areas outside the jurisdiction of the GSA. 

Comment: I support all the questions that Director Carnacchi raised. 

Comment – It is obvious that creeks are impacted by pumping. 

Comment – I would also recommend monitoring deeper wells, they would give better data. 
Jasperse – Deeper wells are part of the Plan, they are quite a bit more expensive. 
DWR funded the shallow wells. We are trying to get more money to secure 
deeper wells and get Prop 68 funding.  

c. Groundwater User Registration Program Update
Andy Rodgers provided an update. They have formed an active work group to
develop and implement a web page and interactive map. People can look at
information about their parcel and it allows an opportunity to confirm and provide
information. The team is currently customizing the data base from Raftelis’ fee
study. They are also developing a significant outreach effort to inform as many
people as possible and currently working on draft No. 6 of the mailer which is still
going through iterations. It is difficult to capture everything in a small mailer. The
Board meeting being canceled in October, threw off the schedule. As such, the
program is delayed from January to spring 2020. The latest edition of the mailer is in
the staff report. Provide any input to Andy Rodgers.

Board Questions/Comments 
Director Fudge – When I read the postcard, it mentions fees twice. I try to put myself into 
the shoes of a rural well owner. The section of the card that mentions “Important to inform 
you…”, I suggest adding a sentence mentioning that accurate data received from the 
customer will be used to help the well owner in the future. 

Director Hopkins – I would love to see a visual to get a sense of the layout. It is interesting 
to see text but a visual is important too. I suggest you print out the mailer for our next 
meeting. 

d. Turf/Toilet rebate Program Update
Andy Rodgers provided a brief update – The program was off to a good start but
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Meeting Date: February 13, 2020 
 

with the fire, the program is not getting the activity we would want to see. Would 
like to refresh everyone that we will be pushing this out through our channels. 

 
Board Questions/Comments 
Director Harvey – Based on suggestion of previous item, would like to see a visual, it gets 
peoples’ attention. 
 
Comment – 0.08 flush is an improvement over past programs. Can you get the rebate with a 
1.6 flush? 

Rodgers – Yes. 
Belmont Terrace Water Company would love to have a rebate available for a 1.6 
flush.  

Director Jacobs – I just emailed staff to send me the details of the program so that I can re-
circulate it again. 

 
7. Action Items 

a. Proposed updates and clarifications to Ordinance 19-01, second reading. 
Staff recommends revisions to Ordinance 19-01 and adoption as Ordinance 19-02, 
“Ordinance Requiring Registration of Groundwater Use Facilities, Water User 
Reporting and Authorizing the Adoption of Groundwater Sustainability Fee. 

 
Andy Rodgers, at August Board meeting we brought forward a modified Ordinance that 
had been approved in June. Concluded clarifications/modifications, particularly the appeals 
process that Board approved before the October meeting. There was also one request in 
August from Director Schwedhelm for clarification. He asked that the word “calendar” be 
added to “days” count. Rodgers checked with Legal Counsel, as it isn’t a substantive 
update, we don’t have to do an additional reading. This second reading includes the 
requested change. 
 
Board Comments/Questions 
Question Director Carnacchi – Section 2 under Penalties, what is the enforcement 
mechanism for the $500/month? It could be costly to do that. 
 Rodgers – One of the things the Board decided was not to bring Counsel to these 

meetings. So, to answer your question, generally, the language gives us the 
option to leverage these mechanisms, but it would be up to us to act on it if we 
feel it is necessary. I can ask legal counsel that specific question to get a more 
accurate answer. 

  Director Carnacchi – How are fees charged? 
Rodgers – If/when fees are charged in 2022, they are likely to be charged on a 
property tax bill by parcel. 
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Public Comments/Questions 
Comment – At the last meeting in August there was still a residential user fee planned. It 
has since been removed. I want to object to the amount of water that is still suggested to 
be used by a residential user, 465 gallons/day estimate is very high. A lot has been done to 
save water in rural residential areas. So, I ask you to reevaluate the usage again. Maybe 
you could put a question on the mailer. “Do you have a meter? How much do you use 
daily?”  This could give us extra feedback and be very useful. 
  Director Hopkins – Thank you for your feedback. 

Rodgers – One of the points of the registration is to make our data better. We 
hope, before 2022, we will have better numbers based on the registration 
program input.  

 
Comment on Ordinance – My closest neighbor to the west is a rural property smaller than 
¼ acre with no outdoor irrigation. Other properties are in excess of three acres and do 
substantial irrigation, there is tremendous variation in water usage. You failed to restrict 
use or actively counsel use. You failed to meet legal standard for regulation of de minimis 
users.  
 
Comment – The objective of the Ordinance is to get registration. In the Prop 68 Proposal 
there is an element of trying to improve this and get voluntary collaboration. The big 
missing element is asking people what their groundwater level is. Many people have data 
that could be used to establish a trend. 

Rodgers – The registration program is built around the factors that make up the 
fee but there will be input possibilities. 

 
Board Comments/Questions 
Director Harvey – Interesting approach – actual data vs subjective data. While I concur 
generally, and subjective data can be compared, many small rural residential well owners 
don’t meter wells. 

 
Director Harvey moved to approve revisions to Ordinance 19-01 and adopt as Ordinance 
19-02, “Ordinance Requiring Registration of Groundwater Use Facilities, Water User 
Reporting and Authorizing the Adoption of Groundwater Sustainability Fee, Director 
Stafford seconded. Motion passed unanimously, 9-0-0 (Director Zane absent). 
 

b. Proposed policy for decisions between Board meetings. Staff recommends the 
Board consider policy for decisions between Board meetings. 

 
Andy Rodgers developed a suggested policy for when there are matters to be addressed 
between Board meetings. The proposed policy was originally based on the one used by 
Sonoma Clean Power but modified to apply to the GSA. A copy is in the package. This policy 
does not apply to expenditure of funds in excess of Rodgers’ authority of $10,000.  
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Public Comments/Questions 
Comment – I would like to ask that the public be emailed about any urgent matter. 
 
Director Jacobs moved to approve this policy with the amendment that the policy is 
reviewed by the Board prior to December 31, 2021, Director Schwedhelm seconded. 
Motion passed unanimously, 9-0-0 (Zane absent). 

 
c. Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement revisions to Exhibit B. Staff recommends the 

Board amend Exhibit B to add the City of Sebastopol to the Member Agency list and 
to remove the City of Sebastopol as an eligible entity that elected not to participate 
on the Agency Board. 

Andy Rodgers, now that the City of Sebastopol has joined the Board, a few 
changes/updates are required in the JPA. Rodgers mentioned the necessary changes and 
recommended the Board approve as suggested. 
No public comment. 
Director Hopkins thanked Sebastopol for joining. 
Director Fudge moved to approve amending Exhibit B to add the City of Sebastopol to the 
Member Agency list, Director Harvey seconded. Motion passed unanimously, 8-0-2. 
(Director Carnacchi abstained, Director Zane absent) 

 
d. Fiscal Year 2019-20 Revised Budget. Staff recommends the Board approve Fiscal Year 

2019-2020 Budget Adjustment. 

Andy Rodgers mentioned that many things had happened in the basin to get to where we 
are today. The registration program is now under development and we need to allocate 
resources for the program. Rodgers pointed out changes in the budget including additional 
funding from the City of Sebastopol, the County, Sonoma Water, and capital grants, and a 
reduction in expenses for the fee study, legal, facilitation and accounting services. By 
moving things around, there is $45,000 to support/manage the registration program 
leaving the FY 19/20 budget with a net income of $5,226.  
 
Board Comments/Questions 
Director Harvey – I support this and am glad to see changes to the registration budget. The 
registration program is key. 
No public comment. 
Director Harvey moved to approve the Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Budget adjustment as 
presented, Director Stafford seconded. Motion passed unanimously, 10-0-0. 

 
e. Contract with Kronick, Moskowitz, Tiedemann and Girard, LLC. Staff recommends 

the Board consider amended contract for legal services from November 1, 2018 
through June 30, 2020. 
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Andy Rodgers recommended to approve the amended existing contract by adding $55,000 
and extending the contract through June 30, 2020. The total for Fiscal Years 2017-2018, 
2018-2019 and 2019-2020 would be a not-to-exceed amount of $175,000. Staff and 
counsel expect monthly spending for legal services will be modest moving forward. 
No Board questions or comments. 
No public comment. 
Director Harvey moved to approve the amended contract with Kronick, Moskowitz, 
Tiedemann and Girard, LLL for legal services from November 1, 2018 through June 30, 2020 
for a not-to-exceed amount of $55,000, Director Stafford seconded. Motion passed 
unanimously, 9-0-1 (Director Jacobs absent). 

 
f. Contract with West Yost Associates. Staff recommends the Board consider the 

amended contract for professional services from November 1, 2019 through June 30, 
2020, by adding a not-to-exceed amount of $45,000 to support development and 
implementation of the Groundwater User Registration Program. 

Andy Rodgers provided a short overview of the proposal. 
 
Board Comments/Questions 
Director Nagle – Is the contract amendment already built into the GSA budget? 
  Rodgers – Yes, it is the Registration Program line item. 
No public comment. 
Director Harvey moved to approve the amended contract with West Yost Associates for 
professional services from November 1, 2019 through June 2020 by adding a not-to-exceed 
amount of $45,000 to support development and implementation of the Groundwater User 
Registration Program, Director Stafford seconded. Motion passed unanimously, 10-0-0. 

 
g. Consider Prop 68 Grant Application Support. Staff recommends the Board support 

the Santa Rosa Plain Groundwater Sustainability Agency Sustainable Groundwater 
Planning Round 3 Project and approve a resolution directing that application be made 
to obtain a grant under the 2019 Sustainable Groundwater Management Grant 
Program Planning – Round 3. 

Marcus Trotta, Sonoma Water, Tech Support gave an update on the recent SGMA Round 3 
grant opportunity through Proposition 68. The GSA did apply and was awarded a $1 million 
SGMA Round 2 GSP grant in July 2017 to fund majority of costs related to the GSP. Now 
there is a new grant opportunity. We engaged the Advisory Committee in initial ideas, and 
prepared and submitted an application, on the due date of November 15, 2019. A 
summary of the grant package is included in the packet. First task is focused on outreach; 
the second, on developing working groups to work through the process of developing 
management sustainable criteria; the third is a working group assembling experts on 
surface water and habitat from resource agencies and organizations to develop SMCs for 
surface water depletion; the fourth task is focused on Permit Sonoma, allowing them to 
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better organize their data and set up protocols and structure to better share their data, 
which has been recognized as a need that will support the GURP and other GSA initiatives; 
the fifth task budgeted for – largest component for proposed construction of four deep 
monitoring wells in the basin to help fill recognized data gaps and improve our monitoring 
network. Map in package shows the proposed locations. The sixth task of Seepage Runs 
measures surface water/groundwater interaction throughout basin and helps site areas 
where recharge projects can be done near streams and where groundwater helps support 
stream flows. The resolution would authorize Sonoma Water to enter into an agreement 
on behalf of the GSA should we be awarded funds. 
 
Board Comments/Questions 
Director Nagle – Are there any matching requirements? 

Trotta – Yes, 25% match required. We identified a $333,000 match, which is 
25%. The total project is $1.3 million. The maximum amount we could get 
awarded is $1million. About $125,000 of that are costs the GSA has already 
incurred. Permit Sonoma identified about $30,000, and City of Santa Rosa, about 
$130,000, which has also already been incurred. 

Director Nagle – Nothing additional? 
Trotta – The only additional match for the GSA would be for administration for 
the grant itself, about $50,000 over the course of two years that would come out 
of the GSA budget. 

Director Fudge – Will Permit Sonoma help with that? Will that be accomplished through 
GIS? 

Trotta – We have a data management system developed for groundwater 
related data, they have their own GIS data management system, it would allow 
part of the scope work to better connect the two systems, so a fair amount of 
GIS work would be part of that. 
 

Public Comments/Questions 
Comment – I was hoping we could have more collaborative processes with the data 
collection and general plan updates. Great opportunity for collaboration, if we ask staff to 
participate. 

Director Hopkins – It is a two-way communication to be fostered between the 
City of Santa Rosa and the GSA. 

 
Comment – I want to put a plug in for Sonoma County Environmental Health, when we are 
applying for grant monies, especially Prop 68, to account for human health and look for 
things like contamination in well water. We should do encompassing monitoring and 
embrace the environmental health as Director Carnacchi alluded to earlier. There are flood 
waters, etc. that carry a lot with them, but it isn’t always only well water. I would like some 
of the money to be set aside for environmental health. A better system for gaging where 
the risks are in the well system. This isn’t being done. Fees have increased fees over the 
last years but there are less and less services. 

11



Agenda Item: 3A 
Meeting Date: February 13, 2020 
 

Director Hopkins – I appreciate the feedback. Great conversation to have 
moving into next year. 

 
Comment – I couldn’t participate in the last Advisory Committee meeting. One overall 
concern is the State will give the money to reimburse previous money spent by the GSA 
and member agencies. I ask that some of the reimbursed money be used to spend money 
on items that aren’t included in this grant application. Monitor what is happening in Wilson 
Grove, east and west of basin, coordinate as Rue Furch said, with Fish and Wildlife. 
Another thing, there is an enormous amount of historical data; from rural residential well 
owners and agricultural data. We aren’t seeing any collaboration of data of wells, 
particularly the groundwater levels. There should be emphasis on using the reimbursed 
money to gather data that already exists. 
 
Board Comments/Questions 
Director Harvey – I appreciate the comment on bringing in our scope and quality of water 
issues, but we need to be mindful of our SGMA responsibilities. 
  Director Hopkins – I appreciate Director Harvey’s comment. 
 
Director Jacobs – All of us here who are working in public water systems are responsible 
for collecting thousands of water quality samples and looking for contaminants. At the 
State policy level, it is a challenge for small systems because it goes beyond the issues of 
SGMA and water quality issues. The environmental water quality issue is under SGMA and 
probably outside the scope of the GSA. 
 
Jasperse – I would like to clarify the comment on reimbursement – there is no 
reimbursement associated with grant funds for previously completed work.  The new 
money that would come from DWR through the grant would not reimburse the GSA or 
member agencies for previous costs.  Those previous costs are being offered by the GSA 
and member agencies as the required match for the grant opportunity. 

 
Director Carnacchi – Two thoughts 1) human health concern, sounds like an incentive if we 
could establish well testing, and 2) gives mechanism for action. 
  Director Hopkins – looks like money spent on good things. 
 
Director Harvey moved to approve supporting the Santa Rosa Plain Groundwater 
Sustainability Agency Sustainable Groundwater Planning Round 3 Project and approving a 
resolution, Director Stafford seconded. Motion passed unanimously, 10-0-0. 
 

8. Administrator, Plan Manager and Legal Counsel Report 
Rodgers – The Administrator report is essentially the staff reports in the meeting packet. 
Next year will be very busy, putting into effect, things that were started this year. Looking 
forward to it. We need all hands on-deck! 
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Jasperse, Plan Manager report – Napa county took the option at the outset of SGMA plan 
(no GSA), they put together an alternative plan (no GSA/no GSP). DWR reviewed all the 
plans (Orange County and some other alternative plans passed). The Napa County plan 
didn’t pass. They appealed and DWR recently made their final determination that Napa 
must comply with SGMA.  
Director Hopkins – Do they follow the same timeline? 

Director Jacobs/Director Nagle – Yes, they are on a short timeline now, and 
need to do a GSA and GSP by the same deadline we have (January 2022). 

 
Jasperse participated in an ACWA (Association of CA Water Agencies) meeting last week. 
DWR in is the process of receiving GSPs to check for compliance; if not in compliance, State 
Board would come in. DWR are holding workshops to review criteria in January, focused on 
critically over-drafted basins. DWR has 2 years to review. Once a plan is submitted, even if 
not reviewed, the GSAs need to start implementing their plan. They are also increasing their 
support under Technical Support Services, there are seven programs under that. Last year 
we received the 2014 land use data. They support GSAs by giving us annual land use 
mapping which will be a great help, and annual air-borne geomagnetic surveys, etc. For the 
SGMA Round 3 GSP grants there is $50 million available, DWR received 54 applications for 
$53 million requests, so good news overall.  The State Water Resources Control Board has 
developed a streamlined permitting process for the recharge projects so you can store your 
water, it seems like a good project– going in the right direction, it will facilitate recharge 
projects, it is innovative. 
No Legal Counsel report. 
 
9. Adjournment 
The meeting adjourned at 3:20 pm. The next meeting will take place on February 13, 2020 
at 1:00pm.   
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Santa Rosa Plain Groundwater Sustainability Agency 
Consent Item 

 
TO:  BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
FROM:  Andy Rodgers, Administrator 
SUBJECT:  Financial and In-kind Report through January 31, 2020 

  
 
Summary: The Agency’s total revenue is $364,487.69 and $112,913.93 in expenses were 
incurred through January 31, 2020. 
  
 
Background  
This report covers the full fiscal year 2019-20. 
The Agency’s budget for FY 19-20 is $703,113.  
 
Income for FY 19/20 is $364,487.69. 
Expenses for FY 19/20 is $112,913.93.  
Accounts receivable balance is $32,531.28.   
Accounts payable balance is $125,702.93.   
Net Income balance for FY 19/20 is in the positive as $251,573.76. 

List of Attachments 
1. Agency Budget Performance as of January 31, 2020 

Contact 
Andy Rodgers, Administrator, 707-508-3672, arodgers@westyost.com 
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Santa Rosa Plain Groundwater Sustainability Agency
Financial Report - Budget to Actual as of 1/31/20

Account Account Description

 Revised 

December 12, 

2019 

 FY 2019/20 

Budget  

          FY 2019/20 

Year-to-Date 

(as of 1/31/20)  

 Amount 

Remaining % of Budget

45221 Sewer/Water Usage Fees $    10 1,885.00 $    10 3,136.00 $      ( 1,251.00) 30.6%

Total Revenues $    10 1,885.00 $    10 3,136.00 $      (1 ,251.00) 30.6%

Interest $   - $   1, 374.69

Total Interest $   - $   1,37 4.69

46022 Capital Grants - State (DWR) $    34 0,000.00 $   - $   34 0,000.00 0.0%

46040 Misc. Revenue (County, Sonoma Water, Seb Contrib.) $    26 1,228.00 $    25 9,977.00 $        1,251.00

Grand Total Revenues $    70 3,113.00 $    36 4,487.69 $   33 8,625.31 51.8%

51021 Communication Expense (Outreach) $    50 ,000.00 $   - $     50 ,000.00 0.0%

51041 Insurance - Liability $    2, 250.00 $    1, 708.60 $           541.40 75.9%

51201 Administration Services (West Yost) $    14 9,873.00 $    89 ,356.32 $    60 ,516.68 59.6%

51204 Property Tax/Assessment Admin (Fee Study/ Raftelis ) $   - $  - 0.0%

51206 Accounting/Auditing Services (Pisenti) $    6, 000.00 $   - $    6,000.00 0.0%

51212 Legal Services (Kronick) $    55 ,000.00 $    13 ,088.71 $     41 ,911.29 21.8%

51213 Engineer Services (SCWA Tech Support) $    29 5,000.00 $   - $   29 5,000.00 0.0%

51226  Consulting Services (AC Facilitation) $    40 ,000.00 $    5, 852.99 $     34 ,147.01 12.7%

51244 Permits/License/Fees (Well Reg/PMRD/AgComm) $    90 ,000.00 $   - $     90 ,000.00 0.0%

51249 Other Professional Serv (SCWA Grant Administration) $    10 ,000.00 $   - $     10 ,000.00 0.0%

51251 Claims Processing $    2, 800.00 $    2, 607.31 $    192.69 93.1%

51301 Publications and Legal Notices $    4, 000.00 $    300.00 $     3,700.00 7.5%

51421 Rents and Leases - Bldg/Land (Meeting Room) $    2, 400.00 $   - $    2,400.00 0.0%

  Subtotal Services $    70 7,323.00 $    11 2,913.93 $   59 4,409.07 17.0%

52031 Food $    500.00 $   - $   500.00 0.0%

52111 Office Supplies $    1, 050.00 $   - $    1,050.00 0.0%

52117 Mail and Postage Supplies $    500.00 $   - $   500.00 0.0%

52118 Printing and Binding Supplies $    500.00 $   - $   500.00 0.0%

55011 Appropriation for Contingencies $    20 ,000.00

  Subtotal Supplies $    22 ,550.00 $   - $   2,55 0.00 0.0%

51000 Grand Total Expenses $    72 9,873.00 $    11 2,913.93

Net Income $    (2 6,760.00) $    25 1,573.76

 Page 1 of 1
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Santa Rosa Plain Groundwater Sustainability Agency 
Information Item 

 
TO:  BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
FROM:  Jay Jasperse, Plan Manager, and Marcus Trotta, Technical Staff 
SUBJECT:  Groundwater Sustainability Plan and Sustainable Management Criteria update 

  
 
Summary: The Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP) is due January 31, 2022. Staff anticipates 
spending most of 2020 developing Sustainable Management Criteria, which are the heart of the 
GSP. 
  
 
Background  
The Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA) requires Groundwater Sustainability 
Agencies (GSAs) in high- and medium-priority basins to develop and submit Groundwater 
Sustainability Plans (GSPs) to the California Department of Water Resources by January 31, 
2022. GSPs are detailed road maps for how groundwater basins will reach and maintain long 
term sustainability. An Initial Notification of GSP Development for the Santa Rosa Plain 
Groundwater Subbasin was submitted to DWR on March 6, 2018 by the Plan Manager, on 
behalf of the GSA. 

The GSP for the Santa Rosa Plain Groundwater Subbasin is being developed through a 
transparent and public process based on the best available science and information. 
Development of the GSP is a collaborative and iterative process that builds upon existing 
technical and policy information and incorporates input from the GSA Board, the GSA Advisory 
Committee, GSA Member Agencies, groundwater users and the public. 

Beginning in spring of 2018, components of the GSP have been developed and shared with the 
GSA Advisory Committee, and periodic updates have been provided to the GSA Board for 
review and input. To date, the Advisory Committee has reviewed, discussed and provided 
feedback on the following draft GSP elements: 

• Overview of GSP work plan 
• Annotated Outline 
• Introduction 
• Plan Area 
• Basin Setting:  Hydrogeologic Conceptual Model 
• Basin Setting:  Current and Historical Groundwater Conditions 
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In the upcoming months the Advisory Committee will discuss the water budget and 
groundwater flow model in greater detail (including water budget components) and assess the 
need for management areas. However, the focus of 2020 will be defining Sustainable 
Management Criteria (SMC).  Representative monitoring wells will also be identified for which 
SMC’s will be established.   

Sustainable Management Criteria 
According to the California Department of Water Resources, in its Sustainable Management 
Criteria Best Management Practices document, “SGMA defines sustainable groundwater 
management as the management and use of groundwater in a manner that can be maintained 
during the planning and implementation horizon without causing undesirable results. The 
avoidance of undesirable results is critical to the success of a GSP.” 

Among the requirements of the GSP are the development of “Sustainable Management 
Criteria” which include defining a sustainability goal, undesirable results, minimum thresholds 
and measurable objectives (see Attachment 1 for a “cheat sheet” defining these terms) for six 
sustainability indicators: 

1. Chronic lowering of groundwater levels indicating a significant and unreasonable 
depletion of supply if continued over the planning and implementation horizon. 

2. Significant and unreasonable reduction of groundwater storage  
3. Significant and unreasonable seawater intrusion  
4. Significant and unreasonable degraded water quality, including the migration of 

contaminant plumes that impair water supplies 
5. Significant and unreasonable land subsidence that substantially interferes with surface 

land uses  
6. Depletions of interconnected surface water that have significant and unreasonable 

adverse impacts on beneficial uses of the surface water (eg. water in streams or 
wetlands). 

The Sustainable Management Criteria developed for these six sustainability indicators will 
define the projects and actions (and therefore the budget and implementation plan) for the 
GSP. 

Anticipated Process 
It is anticipated that throughout 2020, the Advisory Committee will review and discuss the one 
or two Sustainability Indicators at each meeting. The initial discussion will be narrative in 
nature, with staff taking the feedback and developing one or two quantitative options for 
analysis and more in-depth discussion at the following Advisory Committee meeting. 

The recommendations from the Advisory Committee will be brought to the Board throughout 
2020 for discussion and feedback. 
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One of the central challenges of developing SMC’s in Santa Rosa Plain, and in other GSA’s, is 
establishing a common understanding of key words, terms and phrases in the context of SGMA 
that are meaningful and useful to local GSA stakeholders. GSA staff are working to address this 
challenge by increasing the frequency of communications between meetings, further focusing 
the meeting materials, and allocating more presentation meeting time to facilitated 
discussions.       

Two other processes will be taking place in parallel to and in coordination with the Advisory 
Committee input: 

• Public input will be solicited through Advisory Committee outreach to community and 
stakeholder groups and through a community workshop to be held in late April/early 
May. This workshop will provide an overview of the GSP requirements and goals; a 
review of the Basin Setting Section; and will break people into facilitated small groups to 
solicit narrative descriptions of groundwater concerns. A second workshop will be held 
in late 2020, to review and take feedback on the draft SMCs. Other feedback tools 
include an online survey and (dependent on the receipt of Proposition 68 grant funding) 
an information campaign specifically aimed at rural residents. 

• Staff also proposes that three working groups be formed to provide technical expertise 
on issues common to all three GSA basins:  
 

1. Projected growth and significant land use changes in the unincorporated areas 
for the required 50-year planning horizon, to ensure that the GSPs are reflective 
of and take into consideration other planning processes; 

2. Projected changes in agriculture in the three basins; and 
3. Defining and describing groundwater dependent ecosystems and habitat and 

species particularly sensitive to surface water depletion (as a result of 
groundwater pumping). 

In addition to non-GSA technical or subject experts, staff anticipates that each working group 
would include one or two members from each GSA Board or Advisory Committee, to be 
appointed by the Board Chair. 

Staff Recommendation 
Informational item only. 

Fiscal Information 
None. 

Vote Required 
Not Applicable. 
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List of Attachments 

1. Sustainable Management Criteria Cheat Sheet 

Contact 
Jay Jasperse, Plan Manager, 707-547-1959, Jay.Jasperse@scwa.ca.gov 
Marcus Trotta, Sonoma Water, 707-547-1978, Marcus.Trotta@scwa.ca.gov 
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Sustainable Management Criteria 
Cheat Sheet Working DRAFT 

Fundamental to developing Sustainable Management Criteria is understanding the language and 
understanding how the concepts relate to each other. This cheat sheet provides a plain language 
discussion of key terms, and illustrates how the concepts are interrelated. These plain language 
definitions are neither exhaustive nor complete: there are details that must be considered when 
developing SMCs that are not covered in this document.  Sustainable Management Criteria are defined 
by California, and are comprised of six primary Sustainability Indicators. 

Sustainability Indicators or SGMA’s “six deadly sins”.   The six conditions defined by the water code 
that we don’t want to happen in the groundwater basin:  

1. Chronic lowering of groundwater levels indicating a significant and unreasonable depletion of 
supply if continued over the planning and implementation horizon. 

2. Significant and unreasonable reduction of groundwater storage  
3. Significant and unreasonable seawater intrusion  
4. Significant and unreasonable degraded water quality, including the migration of contaminant 

plumes that impair water supplies 
5. Significant and unreasonable land subsidence that substantially interferes with surface land 

uses  
6. Depletions of interconnected surface water that have significant and unreasonable adverse 

impacts on beneficial uses of the surface water (eg. water in streams or wetlands). 

(NOTE:  Sustainability Indicators become significant and unreasonable, and therefore Undesirable 
Results, when a combination of Minimum Thresholds is exceeded, as defined by a Groundwater 
Sustainability Plan [GSP] adopted by a Groundwater Sustainability Agency [GSA].)  

The following describes key terms used by SGMA to determine Sustainability Indicator worst-case 
and aspirational thresholds, and current conditions. California gives our GSA has the discretion and 
opportunity to define these terms so they are meaningful and useful to our basin groundwater users.   

Representative Monitoring Sites. These are typical monitoring sites within the broader entirety 
network of sites that reliably provide high quality data that characterize groundwater conditions in the 
basin. Representative monitoring sites are a subset of a basin’s complete monitoring network, where 
minimum thresholds, measurable objectives, and interim milestones are set and represent a subset of 
a basin’s complete monitoring network.  A single representative monitoring sites can be used for one 
sustainability indicator or multiple sustainability indicators.   

 

V01032020 1 
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Significant and Unreasonable (or, what our gut tells us we don’t want to happen). These are the 
qualitative statements of what local interests want to avoid. This term is not formally defined in SGMA 
regulations; therefore, the use of this term is somewhat interpretive. But it is clearly the guiding 
principle on how sustainability is defined.   

Examples might be lowering groundwater levels to the point that wells can no longer produce any 
water, or pumping more than the sustainable yield.  

Sustainability Goal (or the big picture). A succinct statement of the GSA’s objectives and desired 
conditions and how the basin will achieve these conditions. The sustainability goal is descriptive and 
not quantitative, but is supported by the locally-defined minimum thresholds and undesirable results. 
Demonstration of the absence of undesirable results supports a determination that basin is operating 
within its sustainable yield and, thus, that the sustainability goal has been achieved. The sustainability 
goal should incorporate the following: 

• Goal Description 
• Discussion of measures that will be implemented to achieve sustainability 
• How goal will be achieved in 20 years 

 
The sustainability goal cannot be finalized until after minimum thresholds and undesirable results have 
been defined, projects and management actions have been identified, and the projected impact of 
those projects and management actions on groundwater conditions have been evaluated. 

Example of the Sustainability Goal description (from Paso Robles): The goal of this GSP is to sustainably 
manage the groundwater resources of the Paso Robles Subbasin for long-term community, financial, 
and environmental benefit of Subbasin users. This GSP outlines the approach to achieve a sustainable 
groundwater resource free of undesirable results within 20 years, while maintaining the unique cultural, 
community, and business aspects of the Subbasin. In adopting this GSP, it is the express goal of the 
GSAs to balance the needs of all groundwater users in the Subbasin, within the sustainable limits of the 
Subbasin’s resources. 

Undesirable Results (or the quantitative worst-case scenario). This is a quantitative combination of 
minimum thresholds that define what it means to be sustainable for every sustainability indicator. 
Undesirable results, as defined in the GSP, are THE sustainability metrics used to determine whether 
the basin complies with SGMA and is sustainable now and into the future. Proof of sustainability is 
avoiding undesirable results. 

Example for groundwater levels (from Salinas): Over the course of any one year, no more than 15% of 
groundwater elevation minimum thresholds in any single aquifer and no one well shall exceed its 
minimum threshold for more than two consecutive years. 

 

V01032020 2 
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Minimum Thresholds (or the numerical line in the sand that we don’t want to cross). For each 
sustainability indicator, the Minimum Thresholds are the quantitative values that reflect what is 
significant and unreasonable at every measuring site.  Minimum Thresholds must be quantitative and 
measurable. The numeric value used to define minimum thresholds represents a monitored point in 
the basin (such as at a well) that if exceeded, may cause undesirable results. 

Example for groundwater levels (excerpted from Santa Cruz Mid-County Basin): The minimum 
threshold is the numeric groundwater elevation (as measured at representative monitoring sites over a 
period of time) required to meet the typical overlying water demand in the shallowest well in the 
vicinity.  

Measurable Objectives (or the ideal destination). These are specific, quantifiable goals at each 
representative monitoring site to maintain or improve groundwater conditions in order to maintain or 
achieve the sustainability goal for the basin. Measureable Objectives reflect the GSA’s desired 
groundwater conditions in the basin and guide the GSA to achieve its sustainability goal within 20 
years.  Measurable Objectives should include operational flexibility to accommodate droughts, climate 
change, conjunctive use operations, or other groundwater management activities. 

Example for groundwater levels (excerpted from Santa Cruz Mid-County Basin):  Measurable objectives 
are the 75th percentile of historical groundwater elevations for the period of record of each monitoring 
point, which is higher than median or average groundwater elevations.  

Interim Milestones (or the path forward). Interim milestones are five-year numerical targets that are 
set to guide the basin to its Measurable Objectives). Interim milestones need to be set at each 
representative monitoring site using the same metrics as the measurable objectives and minimum 
thresholds and are used to track progress toward meeting the sustainability goal. Interim milestones 
should result in sustainability being achieved by 2042, and the plan must have a 50-year planning 
horizon (2072). SGMA recognizes that there are future uncertainties that can’t be predicted, and 
provides for adaptation and course corrections at the five-year check-ins, as new information becomes 
available. 

Management Area (or unique areas). This is an area within the basin for which the Plan may identify 
different minimum thresholds, measurable objectives, monitoring, or projects and management 
actions. These can be based on differences in hydrology, water use sector, water source type, geology, 
aquifer characteristics, or other factors.  Management areas may have differently-defined minimum 
thresholds and measurable objectives than the basin at large and may be monitored to a different level 
and scale. Undesirable results, however must be defined for the entire basin and can’t vary by 
management area. 

Sustainable Yield (or how much water is in the ‘checking account’). This is the maximum quantity of 
water -- calculated over a base period that is representative of long-term conditions (allowing for 
variable climatic and natural water supply conditions) in the basin and which  
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includes any temporary surplus -- that can be withdrawn annually from a groundwater supply without 
causing an undesirable result.  It’s important to remember that SGMA requires the GSPs to account for 
climate change, and its anticipated impacts on groundwater (and sustainable yield). 

Note: It is analogous to the sustainable yield calculated for groundwater adjudications, and is used to 
identify any pumping limits or restrictions that may be necessary.  Managed Aquifer Recharge, through 
ponds or injection wells, is not part of the sustainable yield. 
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Santa Rosa Plain Groundwater Sustainability Agency 
Information Item 

 
TO:  BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
FROM:  Andy Rodgers, Administrator 
SUBJECT:  Groundwater User Registration Program update 

  
 
Summary: Staff will provide an informational update on progress of developing a groundwater 
registration program for the Santa Rosa Plain.  
  
 
Background  
On June 13, 2019 the GSA Board adopted An Ordinance Requiring Registration of Groundwater 
Use Facilities (Ordinance No. 19-01) and approved Resolution No. SRP-19-02 to establish a 
groundwater sustainability fee as authorized by Water Code section 10730 and pursuant 
Agency Ordinance No. 19-01 in the amount $19.90 per acre-foot annually. As established in 
Ordinance No. 19-01, a Groundwater User Registration Program will be implemented.  
 
On December 12, 2019, modifications to add clarity to some of the definitions, align the 
methodology description with the adopted fee resolution, and clarify the appeals process were 
adopted by the Board as Ordinance 19-02, "Ordinance Requiring Registration of Groundwater 
Use Facilities, Water User Reporting and Authorizing the Adoption of Groundwater 
Sustainability Fee."  
 
The Groundwater User Registration Program (GURP) is a free information exchange program 
that will allow the GSA to verify basic information about groundwater use and could provide 
important information about wells and areas that may benefit from future programs. The 
following process for implementing the Groundwater User Registration Program is proposed to 
be implemented: 
 

• Step 1. Owners of parcels assumed to use groundwater in the SRP basin will receive a 
postcard from the GSA that includes parcel number, address, parcel size, and type of land 
use. 

• Step 2. If information is correct, groundwater users are not obligated to do anything; 
however, the GSA will encourage and provide a means to submit optional additional 
information (i.e. well and groundwater uses, depth, water quality concerns, etc.) on a 
voluntary basis. 
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• Step 3. If information is incorrect, groundwater users will be encouraged to go online or 
contact GSA to make corrections. 

Program Development 
GSA staff is working with member agency staff, the Advisory Committee, and partner agencies 
such as Permit Sonoma and the Agricultural Commissioner’s office to develop the groundwater 
user registration program. Based on the methodology and datasets approved by the GSA Board 
in June 2019, the program is being designed to confirm or correct the GSA’s information, and 
request and provide a convenient means to collect additional information.   

The Groundwater User Registration Program includes the following primary elements: 
• Santa Rosa Plain sub-basin groundwater user information database 
• Groundwater User Registration Program webpage, that includes: 

 Purpose and benefits of having a Groundwater User Registration Program  
 Overview of Groundwater User Registration Program  
 Interactive webmap to determine if  

 a parcel is in or out of the SRP jurisdiction, and  
 display key factors used to determine a parcel’s groundwater use fee 

 A form to review and provide additional information (electronic and hard copy) 
• GSA and GURP partners (Permit Sonoma, Ag Commissioner, others) 

 Hard copy program binders with information and forms  
• Staff team focused on developing, implementing, and managing the data and program  

 
Roll-out schedule 
The Groundwater User Registration Program launch is currently scheduled for Spring 2020. This 
schedule will allow for at least one more Advisory Committee meeting and at least one Board 
meeting (April) to take place prior to implementing the program. GSA staff and a Groundwater 
User Registration Program working group are continuing to meet regularly. 
 
After the program is launched in Spring 2020, GSA staff will focus on improving and enhancing 
datasets from groundwater user categories over three years beginning in late FY 19-20. The first 
focus category will be the largest groundwater users such as municipalities. After GSA staff have 
updated and enhanced this dataset category and improved the associated database structure and 
functions, GSA staff will focus on improving and enhancing datasets from the other groundwater 
user categories such as small water service providers and agricultural users in FY 20-21 and rural 
residential and urban water users in FY 21-22.  
 
Beta Testing 
The Advisory Committee has been providing significant input on the mailer, information form, 
and program plans. Following the January 13, 2020 Advisory Committee meeting where 
additional input was received, a draft of the information form was also sent to the Advisory 
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Committees for the Sonoma Valley and Petaluma Valley GSAs. As a result, staff have received a 
lot of constructive input and feedback from members of all three Sonoma County GSA Advisory 
Committees.   
 
Currently, the GURP workgroup is reconciling all the input received for the information form 
and formatting a data gathering tool to auto-populate the form and interactive map with 
database information the GSA has regarding groundwater use at a parcel scale.  The goal is to 
create an on-line beta test of the program. The participants will include Advisory Committee 
members from all 3 GSAs, and the AC members will be asked to solicit input from one 
additional groundwater user who is brand new to the concept of a GSA and groundwater user 
registration program.   
 
Beta testers will be provided with the following: 

• a secure link to the beta Groundwater User Registration Program webpage which 
describes the program and provides links to program tools and information 

• an interactive map to determine if a user is located within the basin jurisdiction 
• an auto-populated link to the information exchange form 
• a link to a form to provide organized comments on each section of the program 

  
The beta test is anticipated to be conducted for several weeks between late February and early 
March 2020.  Input received will be evaluated by the GURP workgroup and shared with the 
Advisory Committee on March 9, 2020 and Board on April 9, 2020.   
 
Launch of the Groundwater User Registration Program is anticipated for Spring 2020. The 
specific launch date will be determined based on final Board direction and completion of any 
final program preparations.  
 
Draft Mailer - Groundwater User Registration Program 
Benefiting from feedback from the Advisory Committee, GSA staff, and the working group, the 
following represents a current draft (still in development) for a mailer scheduled to be sent to 
groundwater users in Spring 2020:  
 

Dear Santa Rosa Plain Groundwater User: 
 
Groundwater in the Santa Rosa Plain is an important shared resource. A new state law 
requires that communities protect their groundwater to make sure it’s clean and 
available for all users today and in the future. 

  
To comply with this state law, the Santa Rosa Plain Groundwater Sustainability Agency 
(GSA) was formed in June 2017. In July 2019, the GSA adopted a structure to determine 
fees to fund the work of the GSA.  
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While you are not currently required to pay a fee, you may be in the future beginning in 
2022. Future fees will be calculated using data based on assumptions and estimates of 
wells and groundwater use for all parcels in the Santa Rosa Plain.  
 
IMPORTANT! This mailer was prepared to inform you of an opportunity to review and 
possibly improve data the GSA may have on your parcel’s estimated groundwater use.  

 
Please view and confirm or correct your information at: 
www.santarosaplaingroundwater.org/user or contact the GSA, Permit Sonoma, or 
Sonoma County Agricultural Commissioner’s office. For more information about the GSA 
visit http://santarosaplaingroundwater.org/ 

 
Staff Recommendation 
Provide feedback to staff regarding the schedule, beta test, draft mailer (in development) and 
any aspect of the Groundwater User Registration Program website and survey.  

Fiscal Information 
None. 

Vote Required 
Not Applicable. 

List of Attachments 
None. 

Contact 
Andy Rodgers, Administrator, 707-508-3672, arodgers@westyost.com 
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Santa Rosa Plain Groundwater Sustainability Agency 
Action Item 

 
TO:  BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
FROM:  Andy Rodgers, Administrator 
SUBJECT:  Fiscal Year 2018-19 Financial Audit  

  
 
Summary: Receive report from Auditor and seek Board acceptance. 
  
 
Background  
The Joint Powers Authority for the Agency requires an annual financial audit, beginning with 
Fiscal Year 2017-18 (JPA, at 10.04). At its August 2018 meeting, the Board approved a three-
year contract for annual audits with Pisenti & Brinker, LLP (auditor).  

For the Fiscal Year 2018-19, the auditor gathered information from past administrators, 
Sonoma Water accounting staff and the Sonoma County Auditor, Controller & Tax Collector, 
which serves as the Agency banker. The auditor, Brett Bradford, will make a report to the Board 
and provide recommendations for the current and future fiscal years. 

Final Audit Results 
The auditor anticipates an unmodified opinion, which means that the FY 2018-19 financial 
statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the JPA as of June 30, 
2019, and the changes in financial position and cash flows for fiscal year 2018-19.  As part 
obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the JPA’s financial statements are free of 
material misstatements, the auditors considered both internal control and compliance with 
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements. However, providing an opinion on internal 
control and compliance was not an objective of the audit. Given these limitations, the auditors 
did not identify significant deficiencies in internal control or noncompliance with laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements.   

Staff Recommendation 
Staff recommends the Board Receive and accept the audit and direct staff to implement any 
recommendations provided. 

Fiscal Information 
The audit does not have immediate fiscal implications.  

Vote Required 
Majority vote of the Board is required. 

28



Agenda Item: 7A 
Meeting Date: February 13, 2020 
 
 
List of Attachments 

1. Independent Auditor’s Reports and Basic Financial Statements for the Fiscal Year Ended 
June 30, 2019 

Contact 
Andy Rodgers, Administrator, 707-508-3672, arodgers@westyost.com 
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Assets:
Current assets:

Cash and investments $                157,432
Accounts receivable                200,220

Total current assets  357,652
Total assets                357,652

Liabilities:
Current liabilities

Accounts payable                312,398
Total current liabilities                312,398

Total liabilities                312,398

Net position:
Unrestricted 45,254

Total net position $ 45,254
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Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019 

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Operating revenues:
Member fees $             448,000
In-kind member fees  84,000

Total operating revenues 532,000

Operating expenses:
Services and supplies                624,403
Professional services  84,000

Total operating expenses 708,403

Operating loss (176,403)

Nonoperating revenues:
Investment earnings  5,716
Intergovernmental revenue                146,259

Total nonoperating revenues 151,975

Change in net position (24,428)

Net position, beginning of year  69,682

Net position, end of year $               45,254
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Santa Rosa Plain Groundwater Sustainability Agency 
Statement of Cash Flows 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019 

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from member agencies $ 395,149 
Payments to suppliers                (399,390)

Net cash used by operating activities (4,241)

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received 5,716 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 1,475 
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the year 155,957 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of the year $ 157,432 

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash
used for operating activities:

Operating loss $                (176,403)

D

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash
used by operating activities:

Increase in accounts receivable (52,850)
Decrease in prepaid expense 2,250 
Increase in accounts payable 222,762 

Net cash used for operating activities $ (4,241)

RA
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Note A. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Reporting Entity 

The Santa Rosa Plain Groundwater Sustainability Agency (the Agency) was formed in June 
2017 by a joint exercise of powers agreement among the Sonoma and Gold Ridge Resource 
Conservation Districts; the cities of Cotati, Rohnert Park and Santa Rosa; the Town of 
Windsor; the County of Sonoma, and the Sonoma County Water Agency (Sonoma Water). In 
addition, the Independent Water Providers (comprised of mutual water companies and 
independently owned utilities) participate in the JPA through a Memorandum of Agreement. 
The Independent Water Providers have a seat on the Agency Board and contribute to the 
functioning of the Agency. 

The Agency was formed to cooperatively carry out the requirements of the Sustainable 
Groundwater Management Act (SGMA), including serving as Groundwater Sustainability 
Agency (GSA) for the Santa Rosa Plain Groundwater Basin.   

The Santa Rosa Plain Groundwater Basin was designated in Department of Water Resources 
Bulletin No. 118 as a medium priority basin.  However, in 2019, the basin was reprioritized 
as high priority.  For all medium and high priority basins, the SGMA requires the designation 
of a GSA for the purpose of achieving groundwater sustainability through the adoption and 
implementation of a Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP). The SGMA requires the 
formation of GSAs by June 30, 2017, and the adoption of GSPs by January 31, 2022.   

The Agency is governed by a Board of Directors, with one Director from each of the eight 
member agencies and a Director representing the Independent Water Providers.  In addition, 
the Agency has an advisory committee consisting of representatives from each member 
agency, and representatives from the local agricultural community, rural residential well 
owners, the local business community, environmental interests, the Federated Indians of 
Graton Rancheria, and the community at large. During the year ending June 30, 2019, the 
Agency’s operations were funded by member fees.  Beginning in July 2019, the Agency’s 
operations are funded by groundwater sustainability fees payable by groundwater extractors.  

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, the Gold Ridge Resource Conservation District 
provided fiscal management services for the Agency; West Yost Associates provided 
administrative and management services; Sonoma Water provided grant application, grant 
management, outreach, communication, and technical services; the Collaboration and 
Consensus Program (College of Continuing Education, California State University, 
Sacramento) provided facilitation services.  

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 

The financial statements are reported using economic resources measurement focus and the 
accrual basis of accounting. All assets and all liabilities (whether current or noncurrent) 
associated with Agency operations are included on the statement of net position. Revenues are 
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the 
timing of the cash flows.   
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Note A. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation (continued) 

The Agency’s Enterprise Fund financial statements report business-type activities financed in 
whole or in part by member fees. Enterprise Funds account for operations that are financed 
and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises – where the intent of the 
governing body is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or 
services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through 
user charges such as membership fees.   

Operating revenues and expenses are distinguished from non-operating items in the statement 
of revenues, expenses and changes in net position. Operating revenues, such as member fees, 
result from exchange transactions associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange 
transactions are those in which each party receives and gives up essentially equal value. Non-
operating revenues, such as investment earnings and grant revenues, result from non-exchange 
transactions or ancillary activities. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include services 
and supplies. All expenses not falling within these categories are reported as non-operating 
expenses. 

Cash and Investments 

For purpose of the statement of cash flows, the Agency has defined cash equivalents to include 
investments within the County of Sonoma treasury pool that are not restricted as to use. The 
Agency applies the provisions of GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and Financial 
Reporting for Certain Investments and External Investment Pools, which require 
governmental entities, including governmental external investment pools, to report certain 
investments at fair value in the balance sheet and recognize the corresponding change in the 
fair value of investments in the year in which the change occurred. 

Net Position Components 

Net position consists of the following three components: 

Net investment in capital assets (if any) - This component of net position consists of capital 
assets net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, 
mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or 
improvement of those assets. 

Restricted net position (if any) - This component of net position consists of net position with 
externally imposed limits on its use. 

Unrestricted net position - This component of net position consists of all net position that does 
not meet the definition of net investment in capital assets or restricted net position. 
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Note A. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Member Fees and In-Kind Member Fees 

Funding for the operation of the Agency is through member fees.  Member fees are paid in 
cash, paid through in-kind services in-lieu of cash, or a combination of both.   

The Agency follows standards relating to in-kind services received as member fees consistent 
with FASB ASC Topic 958 Not-for-Profit Entities.  These accounting standards require 
recording the value of in-kind services that create or enhance non-financial assets or require 
specialized skills as both revenue and expense in the period in which the services are 
performed.   

Intergovernmental Revenue 

Intergovernmental Revenue consists of a grant from the State of California.  Revenue is 
recognized based on the terms of the grant agreement. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures.  Actual results could differ 
from those estimates. 

Note B.  Cash and Investments 

The Agency follows the County's practice of pooling cash and investments with the County 
Treasurer. Cash is pooled with the Sonoma County Treasurer, who acts as a disbursing agent 
for the Agency. Interest earned on investments pooled with the County is allocated quarterly 
to the appropriate fund based on its respective average daily balance for that quarter. The 
Investment Oversight Committee has regulatory oversight for all monies deposited into the 
Treasury Pool. The fair value of the Agency’s investment in this pool is reported in the 
accompanying financial statements at amounts based upon the Agency’s prorated share of the 
fair value provided by the Treasury Pool for the entire Treasury Pool portfolio (in relation to 
the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is based on 
accounting records maintained by the Treasury Pool, which are recorded on an amortized cost 
basis. 

Amortized cost: $156,130 

Fair value: $157,432 

The Agency’s fair value of the cash investment with the Treasurer is $1,302 more than the 
amortized cost of those investments. 
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Note B.  Cash and Investments (continued) 

Investment Guidelines 

The Agency’s pooled cash and investments are invested pursuant to investment policy 
guidelines established by the Treasurer and approved by the Board of Supervisors. The 
objectives of the policy are, in order of priority: safety of capital, liquidity and maximum rate 
of return. The policy addresses the soundness of financial institutions in which the County will 
deposit funds, types of investment instruments as permitted by the California Government 
Code 53601, and the percentage of the portfolio that may be invested in certain instruments 
with longer terms to maturity. 

A copy of the Treasury Pool investment policy is available upon request from the Sonoma 
County Treasurer at 585 Fiscal Drive, Suite 100, Santa Rosa, California, 95403-2871. 

Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair 
value of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the 
sensitivity of its fair value is to changes in market interest rates. As a means of limiting its 
exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest rates, one of the ways that the Treasury 
Pool manages its exposure to interest rate risk is by purchasing a combination of shorter term 
and longer term investments and by timing cash flows from maturities so that a portion of the 
portfolio is maturing or coming close to maturing evenly over time as necessary to provide the 
cash flow and liquidity needed for operations. 

As of June 30, 2019, approximately 48.3 percent of the securities in the Treasury pool had 
maturities of one year or less. Of the remainder, only 1 percent had a maturity of more than 
five years. 

Custodial Credit Risk 

The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the 
counterparty to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its 
investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of another party. Custodial credit 
risk does not apply to a local government’s indirect investment in securities through the use 
of government investment pools (such as the Treasury Pool). 

Concentration of Credit Risk 

The investment policy of the County contains no limitations on the amount that can be invested 
in any one issuer beyond that stipulated by the California Government Code. For a listing of 
investments in any one issuer (other than U.S. Treasury securities, mutual funds, or external 
investment pools) that represent 5% or more of total County investments, refer to the 2018-
2019 Sonoma County Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. 
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Note C. Accounts Receivable 

As of June 30, 2019, the Agency has $53,961 in accounts receivable related to member fees 
and $146,259 related to grant funding.  The Agency has not recorded an allowance for 
uncollectible receivables as it deems all receivables as fully collectible. 

Note D. Member Fees and In-Kind Member Fees 

Member fees for the year ending June 30, 2019 were as follows: 

Agency

Cash 
Member 

Fees

In-Kind 
Member 

Fees Receivables Total
City of Cotati 63,500$    -$        500$  64,000$    
City of Rohnert Park 64,000      - - 64,000      
City of Santa Rosa 64,000      - - 64,000      
Town of Windsor 64,000      - - 64,000      
Gold Ridge Resource Conservation District 22,000      20,000      22,000             64,000      
Sonoma Resource Conservation District 13,300      - 6,700 20,000      
County of Sonoma 42,500      - 21,500 64,000      
Sonoma Water - 64,000 - 64,000 
Independent Water Providers 60,739      - 3,261 64,000 

Total 394,039$  84,000$    53,961$           532,000$  

Cash member fees are member fees paid in cash on or before June 30, 2019.  In-kind member 
fees are member fees in the form of services provided to the Agency.  

Note E. Risk Management 

The Agency is exposed to various risks for which the Agency carries insurance with coverage 
for general liability, auto liability, and crime. Primary insurance is provided by Golden State 
Risk Management Authority and excess insurance by Alliant Insurance Services.  Total 
coverage limits are $1,000,000 for auto liability and general liability with $0 deductible. 
Coverage limits for crime are $10,000,000 per occurrence and $5,000,000 per occurrence over 
$10,000,000, with $2,500 deductible.   
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Note F.  Related Party Transactions 

During the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2019, member agencies provided $336,494 in 
professional services, partially in the form of in-kind services provided in-lieu of cash.  The 
Gold Ridge Resource Conservation District provided fiscal management services, and 
Sonoma  Water provided grant application, grant management, outreach, communication and 
technical services.  

Member
In-Kind 
Services

Services 
and 

Supplies Total
Gold Ridge Resource Conservation District 20,000$    605$         20,605$    
Sonoma Water 64,000      251,889    315,889    

Total 84,000$    252,494$  336,494$   
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Santa Rosa Plain Groundwater Sustainability Agency 
Action Item 

 
TO:  BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
FROM:  Andy Rodgers, Administrator 
SUBJECT:  Proposed Fiscal Year 2020-21 Budget 

  
 
Summary: The JPA for the Agency (at 10.06) requires that the Board adopt a budget for the 
agency, by a date no later than April 1st of each Year. The Board may authorize mid-year 
budget adjustments, as needed.  
  
 
Background  
The purpose of this item is to review and approve the proposed FY 2020-21 budget. 

JPA Section 10.06 – Budget. 

“The Board shall adopt a budget for the Agency for the ensuing Fiscal Year not later than April 
1st of each year. The Board may authorize mid-year budget adjustments, as needed.” 

JPA Section 10.07 – Payments To The Agency. 

“All fees, costs and expenses incurred by the Agency may be funded from: (i) voluntary 
contributions from third parties, such as grants; (ii) voluntary contributions, advances or loans 
from the Members or other sources; (iii) bond revenue; (iv) taxes, assessments, fees and/or 
charges levied by the Agency under the provisions of SGMA or otherwise provided by law; and, 
(v) subject to the unanimous vote of the Board, assessments on the Members to carry out the 
activities of the Agency generally applicable to all Members.” 

Revenues: In order to support the continued operations and activities of the Agency, the 
proposed FY 20-21 budget anticipates revenues from municipal pumper fees, an increase in 
grant income from DWR as compared to FY 19-20, and annual contributions from Sonoma 
County, Sonoma Water and the City of Sebastopol.  

Expenses: The proposed budget expenses anticipate managing the launch and evolution of the 
Groundwater User Registration Program, administering the DWR GSP planning grant and 
conducting an increased level of associated technical and outreach services, executing and 
administering a second DWR grant (Prop 68), and applying for a third DWR grant (Prop 68 
implementation), initiating and preparing for a future rate/fee study, and conducting on-going 
operations and outreach.  
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The increase in DWR grant funds and the expenses associated with preparation of the 
Groundwater Sustainability Plan are evident in this draft budget. This increased activity was 
anticipated during FY 20-21 in the five-year budget projection created when the GSA was 
formed. 

The following table summarizes the FY 19-20 budget and the proposed FY 20-21 budget.  

Account Description  FY 20/21  FY 19/20 
Draft Budget Final Budget

Sewer/Water Usage Fees $ 101,885.00 $   101,885.00 
Total Revenues $ 101,885.00 $   101,885.00 

Interest $              - $                - 
Total Interest $              - $                - 
Un contracted Net Income from FY 18/19 $   15,884.00 $                - 
Capital Grants - State (DWR) $ 380,000.00 $   340,000.00 
Misc. Revenue (County, Sonoma Water, Seb Contrib.) $ 261,228.00 $   261,228.00 
Grand Total Revenues $ 758,997.00 $   703,113.00 

Communication Expense (Outreach) $   46,000.00 $     50,000.00 
Insurance - Liability $     2,250.00 $       2,250.00 
Administration Services (West Yost) $ 155,000.00 $   149,873.00 
Property Tax/Assessment Admin (Fee Study) $   10,000.00 $                - 
Accounting/Auditing Services (Pisenti) $     8,000.00 $       6,000.00 
Legal Services (Kronick) $   55,000.00 $     55,000.00 
Engineer Services (SCWA Tech Support) $ 320,000.00 $   295,000.00 
Consulting Services (AC Facilitation) $   35,000.00 $     40,000.00 
Permits/License/Fees (GW User Reg Program) $   80,000.00 $     90,000.00 
Other Professional Serv (SCWA Grant Administration) $   30,000.00 $     10,000.00 
Claims Processing $     2,800.00 $       2,800.00 
Publications and Legal Notices $     4,000.00 $       4,000.00 
Consulting (In-Kind)
Rents and Leases - Bldg/Land (Meeting Room) $     2,400.00 $       2,400.00 
     Subtotal Services $ 750,450.00 $   707,323.00 

Food $        500.00 $          500.00 
Office Supplies $     1,050.00 $       1,050.00 
Mail and Postage Supplies $        500.00 $          500.00 
Printing and Binding Supplies $        500.00 $          500.00 
Appropriation for Contingencies $     5,000.00 $     20,000.00 
     Subtotal Supplies $     7,550.00 $     22,550.00 

Grand Total Expenses $ 758,000.00 $   729,873.00 

Net Income $        997.00 $    (26,760.00)   

 

42



Agenda Item: 7B 
Meeting Date: February 13, 2020 
 
The proposed budget would add $5,000 to unspent reserves for a total of $25,000 in unspent 
reserves for the Agency. This is lower than the goal of the June 13, 2019 adopted policy which 
sets a goal of reserves equal to three months of on-going operating expenses – or $84,250 for 
FY 2019-20. 
 
Fiscal Information 
Proposed FY 2020-21 budget with expenditures of $758,000 and revenues of $758,997. 
 
Staff Recommendation 
Staff recommends that the Board approve the draft Fiscal Year 2020-21 budget. 
 
Vote Required 
Supermajority. 
  
List of Attachments 

1. Preliminary draft Fiscal Year 2020-21 budget  
 

Contact 
Andy Rodgers, Administrator, 707-508-3672, arodgers@westyost.com 
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             Agenda Item: 7B, Attachment 1
             Meeting Date: February 13, 2020

FY 2020-21Preliminary Budget Summary
Santa Rosa Plain Groundwater Sustainability Agency

Fund - 76501
Dept ID - 71120100

(1)* Estimated Beginning Fund Balance @7/01/20: $15,884

(2) Plus: Budgeted FY 2019-20 Revenues: 743,113
  (total from attached worksheet)

(3) Less: Budgeted FY 2019-20 Expenditures: (758,000)
  (total from attached worksheet)

(4)* Estimated Ending Fund Balance @6/30/21 $997

(5) Preliminary Budget Approval Date: 2/13/2020
  (Please have your Board Members sign below or
   attach resolution confirming approval)

___________________________ ___________________________
Board Member Board Member

___________________________ ___________________________
Board Member Board Member

___________________________ ___________________________
Board Member Board Member

___________________________ ___________________________
Board Member Board Member

___________________________ ___________________________
Board Member Board Member

*

If District Fund Balance is separated into multiple categories, each district 
should keep records to identify how much beginning and ending fund balance
is available for each fund balance category and should work with their external
auditors to identify appropriate GASB 54 fund balance classifications.
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Santa Rosa Plain Groundwater Sustainability Agency
Fund - 76501

Dept ID - 71120100
FY 2020-21
Preliminary 

Account Account Description Budget
40002 Prop Tax - CY,Secured
40003 Direct Charges - CY
40005 Prop Taxes - RDA Increment
40006 AB1290 RDA Pass Throughs
40007 H&S 33401 RDA Pass Throughs
40008 H&S 33676 RDA (2%) Allocation
40010 Residual Prop Tax - RPTTF
40011 Direct Charges - Intercounty
40012 SB2557 Prop Tax Admin
40050 Property Tax Accrual
40101 Prop Taxes - CY, Unsecured
40105 CollectCost Del CY Unsecured
40111 Supplemental Prop Taxes - CY
40201 Prop Taxes - PY, Secured
40202 Direct Charges - Prior Year
40211 Prop Taxes - PY, Unsecured
40221 Supplemental Prop Taxes - PY
40301 Sales and Use Tax
40404 Timber Yield Tax
40900 Other Taxes
40999 Penalties and Costs on Taxes

40000   Total Tax Revenue 0
41132 Licenses - Other
41152 Mitigation Fees

41000   Total Licenses,Permits,Franchises 0
42103 State - Vehicle License Fees
42261 State Construction/Subventions
42281 State Emergency Preparedness
42291 State Homeowners Prop Tax Relf
42358 State Other Funding
42360 State Grant Revenue
42441 Federal FEMA Disaster Funding
42461 Federal Other Funding
42601 County of Sonoma
42610 Other Governmental Agencies (SCWA)
42611 City of Santa Rosa
42612 City of Petaluma
42613 City of Rohnert Park
42615 City of Cotati
42618 City of Sonoma
42619 Town of Windsor
42622 MTC (Metropolitan Transp Comm)
42623 Measure M
42624 RDA Asset Distribution
42627 Special Districts (Sonoma and Gold Ridge RCDs)
42628 Cities

42000   Total Intergovernmental Revenues 0
43201 Fines, Forfeitures, Penalties

43000   Total Fines, Forfeitures, Penalties 0
44002 Interest on Pooled Cash
44003 Other Interest Earnings
44050 Unrealized Gains and Losses ( FY 18/19 uncontracted)
44101 Rent - Real Estate
44102 Rent - Equipment
44109 Concessions

44000   Total Revenue - Use of Money & Prop 0

45



Agenda Item: 7B, Attachment 1
Meeting Date: February 13, 2020

Santa Rosa Plain Groundwater Sustainability Agency
Fund - 76501

Dept ID - 71120100
FY 2020-21
Preliminary 

Account Account Description Budget
45008 NCPA Fees for Govt. Services
45061 Planning and Engineering Svcs
45062 Construct/Bldg Permit Rvw Svcs
45065 Inspection Fees
45221 Sewer/Water Usage Fees 101,885
45253 Ambulance Fees
45281 Library Services
45283 Library Postage Recovery
45284 Fines - Delinquent Collections
45291 Parks and Recreation Services
45301 Charges for Services
45309 Retirement Administration Fees
45310 Fire Dispatch Fees
45311 Other Fire Services
45313 Sale - Water
45319 Abatement Revenue
45507 Telecommunication Data Lines
45530 Maintenance fees
45533 Reprographics Photocopy

45000   Total Charges for Services 101,885
46002 Sales - Taxable
46003 Sales - Non Taxable
46021 Capital Grants - Federal
46022 Capital Grants - State 380,000
46023 Capital Grants - Other
46024 Connection Fees
46027 Insurance Claims Reimbursement
46028 Insurance Claims Rebates
46029 Donations/Contributions
46040 Miscellaneous Revenue (County, Sonoma Water, Sebastopol contributions) 261,228
46041 Discounts Earned
46050 Cancelled/Stale Dated Warrants
46051 Returned Checks
46200 Revenue Appl PY Misc Revenue
46210 Refunds

46000   Total Miscellaneous Revenues 641,228
47002 Sale of Capital Assets
47101 Transfers In - within a Fund
47102 Transfers In - btw Govtl Funds
47103 Transfers In - All Others

47000   Total Other Financing Sources 0
49002 Advances
49003 Advances Clearing
49004 Administrative Control Account
49005 Admin Control Acct Clearing

49000   Total Administrative Control Accts 0
Grand Total Revenues 743,113

50701 Perm Position - Local Bds
50702 Extra Help - Local Bds
50703 Overtime - Local Bds
50704 Boards/Commissions - Local Bds
50705 Premium Pay - Local Bds
50707 Standby Pay - Local Bds
50708 Contract Employee - Local Bds
50709 Temporary Help - Local Bds
50751 Retirement - Local Bds
50752 County Retirement - Local Bds
50753 FICA Retirement - Local Bds
50754 Deferred Comp - Local Bds
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Santa Rosa Plain Groundwater Sustainability Agency
Fund - 76501

Dept ID - 71120100
FY 2020-21
Preliminary 

Account Account Description Budget
50755 PERS - Local Bds
50756 Medicare - Local Bds
50801 Health Ins - Local Bds
50802 Disability - Local Bds
50803 Dental - Local Bds
50804 Life Ins - Local Bds
50805 Vision - Local Bds
50806 Unemployment - Local Bds
50808 Worker's Comp - Local Bds

50000   Total Salaries and Employee Benefits 0
51021 Communication Expense (SCWA Outreach) 46,000
51022 Telecom. Lines (non ISD)
51031 Waste Disposal Services
51032 Janitorial Services
51041 Insurance - Liability 2,250
51042 Insurance - Premiums
51046 Insurance - Workers Comp
51061 Maintenance - Equipment
51071 Maintenance - Bldg & Improve
51072 Landscaping Services
51074 Maint - Parks and Grounds
51077 Maint - Infrastructure
51101 Sewer Collection Services
51201 Administration Services (West Yost) 155,000
51202 Election Services
51204 Property Tax/Assessment Admin (Fee Study) 10,000
51205 Advertising/Marketing Svc
51206 Accounting/Auditing Services 8,000
51207 Client  Accounting Services
51209 Information Tech Svc (non ISD)
51211 Legal Services 55,000
51213 Engineer Services (SCWA Tech Support) 320,000
51214 Agency Extra/Temp Help
51215 Director/Commissioner Services
51218 Actuarial Services
51219 Burial Services
51221 Medical/Laboratory Services
51222 Safety/Emergency Services
51225 Training Services
21226 Consulting Services (In-Kind)
51226 Consulting Services (Monitoring/ AC Facilitation) 35,000
51230 Security Services
51231 Testing/Analysis
51235 Dispatch Services
51241 Outside Printing and Binding
51242 Bank Charges
51244 Permits/License/Fees (Registration Program) 80,000
51248 Micrographics/Microfilm Svc
51249 Other Professional Services (SCWA Grant Administration) 30,000
51250 Planning/Mapping/Inspections
51251 Claims Processing 2,800
51301 Publications and Legal Notices 4,000
51301 Publications and Legal Notices
51401 Rents and Leases - Equipment
51402 Rents and Leases - Heavy Eqt
51421 Rents and Leases - Bldg/Land (Meeting Room) 2,400
51503 Foundation Expense
51504 Peace Officer Training Expense
51601 Training/Conference Expenses
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Santa Rosa Plain Groundwater Sustainability Agency
Fund - 76501

Dept ID - 71120100
FY 2020-21
Preliminary 

Account Account Description Budget
51602 Business Travel/Mileage
51604 Other Transportation
51605 Private Car Expense
51801 Other Services
51802 Public Safety Realignment
51803 Other Contract Services
51901 Telecommunication Data Lines
51902 Telecommunication Usage
51903 Telecommunication Installation
51904 ISD - Baseline Services
51905 ISD - Improvement Projects
51906 ISD - Supplemental Projects
51907 ISD - Device Modernization Pro
51909 Telecommunication Wireless Svc
51910 Courier Services
51911 Mail Services
51912 Records Services
51915 ISD - Reprographics Services
51916 County Services Chgs
51918 HRMS Charges
51919 EFS Charges
51920 Risk Mgmt Benefit Admin Chgs
51927 Unclaimable HRMS

        Subtotal Services 750,450
52021  Clothing, Uniforms, Personal
52031 Food 500
52041 Household Supplies Expense
52042 Janitorial Supplies
52043 Safety Supplies/Equipment
52061 Fuel/Gas/Oil
52071 Materials and Supplies Expense
52072 Chemicals
52081 Medical/Laboratory Supplies
52091 Memberships/Certifications
52101 Other Supplies
52111 Office Supplies 1,050
52114 Freight/Postage
52115 Books/Media/Subscriptions
52116 Photocopy Supplies
52117 Mail and Postage Supplies 500
52118 Printing and Binding Supplies 500
52141 Minor Equipment/Small Tools
52142 Computer Equipment/Accessories
52143 Computer Software/Licensing
52144 Equipment Allowance
52145 Grant Acquired Tools/Equip
52162 Special Department Expense
52163 Professional Development
52165 Physical Fitness
52166 Employee  Recognition Expense
52168 Recreational Supplies
52191 Utilities Expense
52193 Utilities - Electric
52194 Utilities - Water

            Subtotal Supplies 2,550
51000   Total Services and Supplies 753,000
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Santa Rosa Plain Groundwater Sustainability Agency
Fund - 76501

Dept ID - 71120100
FY 2020-21
Preliminary 

Account Account Description Budget
53012 Support and Care of Persons
53101 Principal Payments - LT Debt
53103 Interest on LT Debt
53104 Other Interest Expense
53105 Costs of Issuance
53201 Judgments and Damages
53301 Taxes and Assessments
53402 Depreciation Expense
53501 Contributions
53611 Income Allocations

53000   Total Other Charges 0
54101 Land
54305 Machinery and Equipment
54330 Grant Acquired Equipment
54331 Mobile Equipment
54333 Computer Equipment
54405 CIP - Bldg & Impr
54406 CIP - Infrastructure
54503 Work in Progress - Eqt

54000   Total Capital Expenditures 0
55011 Appropriation for Contingenc 5,000

55000   Total Appropriations for Contingencies 5,000
56030 Residual Equity Transfers

56000   Total Special Items 0
57011 Transfers Out - within a Fund
57012 Transfers Out - btw Govtl Fund
57015 Transfers Out - All Others
57101 Other Financing Uses

57000   Total Other Financing Uses 0
58010 Reimb. - General
58011 Reimb. - Administration
58016 Reimb. - Labor

58000   Total Reimbursements 0
59002 Advances
59004 Administrative Control Account
59005 Admin Control Acct Clearing

59000   Total Administrative Control Accts 0
19810 Acq-Land
19820 Acq-Machinery and Equipment
19821 Acq-Grant Acquired Equipment
19831 Acq-CIP-Bldg & Impr
19832 Acq-CIP-Infrastructure
19834 Acq-CIP-Infrastructure Labor
19840 Acq-WIP-Equipment
19850 Acq-Intangibles-Amortizbl

19000   Total Capital Assets 0
Grand Total Expenditures 758,000
Increase/(Decrease) to Fund Balance (14,887)
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Santa Rosa Plain Groundwater Sustainability Agency 
Action Item 

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
FROM: Andy Rodgers, Administrator 
SUBJECT: GSA Board Advisory Committee Appointments 

Summary: Seven of the 18 Advisory Committee members are appointed by the Board. The 
following seats have been vacated mid-term: one Environmental and one Rural Residential. A 
Board ad hoc was formed to consider candidates that had applied for the Environmental seat in 
November 2019 and review a process for soliciting candidates for the Rural Residential seat.   

Background  
The Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA) requires the Agency to consider the 
interests of basin stakeholders, including: agricultural water users, residential well owners, 
municipal well operators, public water systems, land-use agencies, environmental users of 
water, surface water users, the federal government, California Native American tribes, and 
disadvantaged communities. To ensure tthe ideas and opinions of stakeholders are actively 
solicited, the Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement requires the agency create an Advisory 
Committee. The Advisory Committee reviews and/or provides recommendations to the Board 
on groundwater-related issues that may include:  

Development, adoption or amendment of the Groundwater Sustainability Plan 

• Sustainability goals and objectives
• Best management practices
• Monitoring programs
• Annual work plans and reports (including mandatory 5-year milestone reports)
• Modeling scenarios
• Inter-basin coordination activities
• Projects and management actions to achieve sustainability
• Community outreach
• Local regulations to implement SGMA
• Fee proposals
• General advisory
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The Santa Rosa Plain Advisory Committee is not be involved in the Agency budget or day-to-day 
operations, such as personnel staffing or contracting. 

Of the 18 members of the Advisory Committee, seven are appointed by the Board, in the 
following categories: Environmental representative (2), rural residential well owner (2), 
business community representative (1), and agricultural interest (2). 

Environmental Seat: Sebastian Bertsch, Board-appointed Advisory Committee member, 
notified staff and the Advisory Committee of his intent to step down from the committee in 
September 2019. After consulting with GSA staff that participated in the Advisory Committee 
selection process in 2017, staff completed the following steps:  

• Reviewed applications received in 2017 and the selection process
• Created an updated application specific to the Environmental seat
• Posted the application on the GSA website
• Publicized the application through newspaper ads, an email blog to a stakeholder list

(includes more than 1,000 people), and alerts through Next Door targeting Santa Rosa
Plain residents.

• Encouraged the outgoing and current Environmental AC representatives to reach out to
their respective networks

• Fielded questions by applicants, collected applications, and evaluated for eligibility.

The application period was open between November 7 and 30, 2019. Four people applied to 
serve as the Environmental Representative on the Advisory Committee. All were determined 
eligible to serve in accordance with the Agency Bylaws and Advisory Committee Charter. The 
applications of the four candidates are attached. 

The ad hoc met on February 3, 2020 to evaluate the four applications, using a rating matrix 
(attached) for guidance. The matrix reflects Attachment B of the Santa Rosa Plain GSA Joint 
Power Authority agreement which provides guidance on Advisory Committee selection. All four 
applicants were excellent candidates making the selection challenging.  

The ad hoc recommends Beth Lamb be appointed to the Advisory Committee because of her 
understanding of, or commitment to, groundwater issues; experience working with diverse 
stakeholders and organizations in the Santa Rosa Plain area; and a strong desire to 
communicate with her stakeholder community.  

This appointment is intended to complete the term originally assigned to Sebastian Bertsch, 
which ends December 2020. Ms. Lamb may reapply for a second term at that time.  

If the Board selects Beth Lamb, or a different candidate, the three candidates not selected will 
be contacted and encouraged to apply for the recently opened Rural Residential seat, as it 
appears, they all may be eligible for that seat too.   

Rural Residential: Doug Beretta, Board-appointed Advisory Committee member, notified staff 
of his intent to step down from the committee in January 2020. The Advisory Committee was 

51



Agenda Item: 7C 
Meeting Date: February 13, 2020 

informed at the January 13, 2020 meeting, after which staff has received calls from interested 
parties inquiring about the opening. On February 3, 2020, the ad hoc discussed options for 
appointing a replacement including reviewing previously received applications; but decided it 
would be most beneficial for the GSA to advertise the Rural Residential seat opening as soon as 
possible.   

Staff Recommendation 
Board ad hoc recommends Beth Lamb be appointed to the GSA Advisory Committee as one of 
two Environmental representatives, for a term ending December 2020.  

Staff recommends advertising and promoting a Rural Residential seat on the GSA Advisory 
Committee.   

Fiscal Information 
None. 

Vote Required 
Supermajority.  

List of Attachments 
1. Applications of eligible candidates
2. Rating Matrix

Contact 
Andy Rodgers, Administrator, 707-508-3672, arodgers@westyost.com 
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Santa Rosa Plain Groundwater Sustainability Agency 
Advisory Committee Application 
APPLICATION FORM 

Disclosures 
All meetings of the Advisory Committee will be open to the public and subject to the Brown Act. 

Advisory Committee Applicant information is not regarded as confidential except for the 
applicant’s and applicant references’ addresses, phone numbers, and emails.  

State law may require appointees to file disclosure statements (Form 700). 
http://www.fppc.ca.gov/Form700.html  

Date Submitted – November 8, 2019 

First and Last Name – Beth Lamb 

Describe how you meet Eligibility (address of home or business) link to basin map 
- resident -place of employment –

For which Interest-group Seat would you like to be considered? 

Applicant can select more than one interest 

 Environmental representative (2 seats available)

◻ Rural residential well owner - domestic water primary use (2 seats available)

◻ Business community representative (1 seat available)

◻ Agricultural interest (surface water or GW user) (2 seats available)

Describe how you will represent this interest group and communicate with other members of this 
interest group.   

I am currently a member of Sonoma County Fish and Wildlife Commission and attend 
monthly meeting where we communicate about environmental topics in Sonoma County 
which include protections for and restoration of fish and wildlife habitat.  In addition, I am a 
member of several environmental groups in Sonoma County including the Laguna 
Foundation, Pepperwood Preserve, Sierra Club, LandPaths, Daily Acts and Stewards of the 
Coast and Redwoods.  I also volunteer doing environmental education (geology and 
watershed science) for elementary and middle school students. I am an advocate for the 
preservation of public lands to maintain our beautiful open spaces, preserve the existing 
natural environments and provide refuge and habitat for the native fish and wildlife in our 
community.  I think it is important that fish and wildlife have a voice in decisions that we 
make to manage groundwater. I am interested in using by fact based scientific knowledge to 
help explain environmental science to the public. 
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Current Occupation Within the last 12 months 
Engineering Geologist/Hydrogeologist for the North Coast Regional Water Quality Control 
Board in the groundwater cleanups group. 

Current License(s) Professional or occupational, date of issues / expiration, including status 
State of California Professional Geologist expires 6/30/2021 
State of California Certified Engineering Geologist expires 6/30/2021 
State of California Certified Hydrogeologist expires 6/30/2021 

Education / Experience 
Experience: 
• Thirty-five years as professional geologist
• Thirty-one years in the environmental/hydrogeology field
• Twenty years regulating groundwater cleanup investigations
• State of California Professional Geologist, Certified Engineering Geologist and

Certified Hydrogeologist

Education: 
• University of California at Santa Barbara, B.A. – Geology 9/78
• University of New York at Buffalo, M.A. – Geology 12/84

Applicant may attach resume containing this and any other information that would be helpful to the 
Board in evaluating the application. 

Other Board / Commission / Committee on which you Serve / have Served 
Name / Date of Service 

Sonoma County Fish and Wildlife Commission Member– Current since 2015 
Sebastopol World Friends Board Member/Secretary – Current since 2012 

Letters of Support 

For interest-based seats, applicants are encouraged to demonstrate support from local organizations 
and community groups engaged on issues related to the interest that the applicant seeks to represent 
(i.e. environmental, business, agriculture, rural communities) by attaching letters of support. Letters 
of support are not necessary for eligibility but are welcome to demonstrate the applicant’s ability to 
represent those interests. 

Please list letters here: Organization, Author, Date (see Attached) 
• Crystal Norris, Chairman of the Fish and Wildlife Commission, 11/7/2019
• Paul Nelson, Engineering Geologist, North Coast Regional Water Quality Control Board,

11/8/2019

References 
At least 2 names and contact information 

• Crystal Norris,
• Paul Nelson,
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Please explain your reasons for wishing to serve and, in your opinion, how you feel you can 
contribute. 

I am uniquely qualified for a seat on the Advisory Committee based on my education and over 
30 years professional experience as a professional geologist that has specialized in groundwater 
hydrogeology.  My work for the North Coast Regional Water Quality Control Board has 
allowed me to attend the Santa Rosa Plain Groundwater Management Plan meetings and I have 
been keeping abreast of the groundwater modeling that has been performed in the basin by the 
USGS.  As a member of Groundwater Resource Association, have attended several trainings on 
the development of Groundwater Sustainability Plans.  My technical knowledge of groundwater 
modeling and sampling will be an asset to the Advisory Committee.  

I would like a seat as a representative of the environmental community because my interest in 
protecting the beneficial uses of our lands for the public and wildlife.  As a member of Sonoma 
County Fish and Wildlife Commission as well as numerous environmental groups in Sonoma 
County, I will be able to advocate for the public as well as wildlife (who need a voice) in 
managing our groundwater resources.  I will bring a science-based perspective to my decision 
making.  I believe in taking a collaborative approach to discussions and engaging public 
stakeholders.  

NOTE: The Agency will keep all applications on file for one year from the date of receipt of the 
application. 
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November 7, 2019 

Santa Rosa Plain Groundwater Sustainability 
Agency Advisory Committee 

I am writing in support of Beth Lamb's application with your committee. Beth has been fellow 
Sonoma County Fish & Wildlife Commissioner since 2014. Commissioners are appointed by the 
Board of Supervisors and tasked with dispensing fine monies leveled by California Department_ 
of Fish & Wildlife wardens in �onoma County. 

Our Commission is presented with grant projects in Sonoma County that improve habitat, 
education, scientific studies, conservation and scholarships associated with fish or wildlife. 

As an active member of the Commission, Beth's professionalism has assisted in evaluating all 
aspects of these proposal. Her concern for the environment and conservation of our lands and 
wildlife are a positive perspective of the fairness and knowledge she brings in the decisions we 
make. 

With Beth's years of experience as a geologist specializing in groundwater issues in Sonoma 
County I feel that she will be an outstanding benefit to this Committee. 

Sincerely, 

C��ta.ll °'No.ivw> 
Crystal Norris 
Chair 
Sonoma County Fish and Wildlife Commission 
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PAUL NELSON, P.G., C.HG. 

November 8, 2019 

Santa Rosa Plain Groundwater Sustainability 

Agency Advisory Committee 

I am writing in support of Beth Lamb's application with your committee. I have worked 

with Beth for over 15 years as an environmental consultant, and as a colleague at the 

Regional Water Board. When I was in consulting, I had the pleasure of working with 

Beth on several contaminated site cases in Sonoma County. She provided insight and 

professionalism to the projects and was helpful through the regulatory process. 

Working with Beth at the Regional Water Board has been no different. I can count on 

Beth to lend her experience in handling complex sites, offering suggested solutions. 

Beth is also active in the environmental community and volunteers at various schools, 

teaching ad hoc geology courses to middle schoolers, and is an inspiration to many 

young geologists in the office. Beth has the education and experience in hydrogeology 

including SGMA, aquifer storage and recovery, and of course, groundwater quality to 

be valuable member of the GSA advisory committee. 

Best, 

(U� 
Paul Nelson, P.G., C.Hg. 
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Stacy K. Li, Ph.D., Principal 
Aquatic Systems Research 

I. SUMMARY
Stacy K. Li, PhD has resumed environmental consulting as the owner of Aquatic Systems
Research after retiring from the National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS) in 2008.  While
at NMFS, he served as Water Rights Specialist and Fish Ecologist for the Habitat
Conservation Division.  This entailed much regulatory and permitting responsibility.  He
was the first and only Enforcement Biologist for the Office of Law Enforcement. Prior to
joining federal civil service, Dr. Li was owner of Aquatic Systems Research (1989-2001).
He began his professional career in May 1980 with just a narrow perspective of behavioral,
ecological, and evolutionary fish biology and the same narrow view of natural resource
management objectives.  With experience his perspective has expanded into an ecosystem
view with broader and sounder approaches to sustainable management.  His experience
includes serving as Principal-in-Charge, project manager, principal investigator, task leader
and aquatic biologist on numerous biological investigations mostly in California, but also in
Oregon, Washington and Nevada.  His most notable work is related to the Mono Lake
Hearing that included instream assessments on Rush Creek and Lee Vining Creek,
subsequent expert witness testimony on behalf of California Department of Fish and Game
and consequent stream restoration planning for Mono Basin streams. In addition, Dr. Li has
served as Chairman of the Loomis Planning Commission during the development of its first
general plan, and a member of the general plan update steering committee and has gained
experience with the planning process.  He also served on the Placer County Stream
Management Task Force that addressed stream management and flood hazards in western
Placer County and experienced how policy is developed

II. EDUCATION
Ph.D.  Psychology (Animal Behavior), University of California at Davis - 1976
M.S.  Comparative Psychology, University of California at Davis - 1971
B.A.  Psychology, University of California at Davis - 1969
B.S.  Zoology, University of California at Davis - 1968
A.A.  City College of San Francisco - 1966
Diploma James Russell Lowell High School, San Francisco, CA – 1964

III. EXPERIENCE
Principal -Aquatic Systems Research 2008-Present

Invited to join Water Audit  
Comment letter on Dogwood Timber harvest plan on the Gualala River  
Goldhill Diversion Dam (Placer County) assessment 
Comment letter groundwater effects on Bidwelll Creek in Knight’s Valley from the 
Knight’s Bridge Winery 
Upper Mark West Creek habitat inventory 
Carmel River migration flow study 
Presented papers at the 2010 and 2012 Bay Delta Conferences 
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Fisheries Biologist - National Marine Fisheries Service 2001-2008 
Santa Rosa Field Office 
Instream flow specialist – Habitat Conservation Division 

California Instream Flow Technical Advisory Committee 
Klamath River Instream Flow Technical Advisory Committee 
San Joaquin River Restoration Project Technical Advisory Committee 

Water rights specialist – Habitat Conservation Division 
Reviewed and conditioned appropriative water rights permit applications in 
Monterey, Santa Cruz, San Mateo, Marin, Sonoma, Napa and Mendocino 
counties. 

Enforcement biologist – Office for Law Enforcement 
Alder Creek Investigation 
Carmel River Investigation 
Little Sur River Investigation 

Principal -Aquatic Systems Research 1989-2001 
Mono Basin Stream Restoration Team 
Expert witness on behalf of CDFG for Mono Basin instream flows in the Mono 
Lake Hearing. 
Lee Vining Instream Flow study 
NF Stanislaus Instream Flow study 
Leviathan Mine Habitat Inventory 
Santa Clara Valley fish abundance surveys for the Fish and Aquatic Habitat 
Collaborative Effort (FAHCE) 
FAHCE (Fish and Aquatic Habitat Collaborative Effort) 
Last Chance Creek habitat change monitoring. 

Senior Fisheries Biologist Beak Consultants (Firm Defunct), Sacramento, California 
1986-1989 

Rush Creek Instream Flow Study 
Yuba River Instream Flow Study 
Lower American River Instream Flow 
Mammoth Creek Instream Flow 

Associate Fisheries Biologist Holton and Associates (Firm Defunct), Berkeley, 
California 1984-1986 

Bear River Instream Flow Study 
Senior Fisheries Biologist Environmental Impact Planning (aka EIP Associates), San 
Francisco, California 1983- 1984 

Ponderosa Project 
Wards Ferry-Clavey River Project 
Tuolumne River Instream Flow 
MF Tuolumne River Instream Flow 
SF Tuolumne River Instream Flow 

Clavey River Instream Flow 
Aquatic Biologist Don W, Kelley and Associates (Firm Defunct), Newcastle, California 
1980-1983 

Tucannon River, Washington -habitat Assessment 
Tucannon River stream temperature model 
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Carmel River Instream Flow 
Carmel River Stream Temperature Model (First application of SNTEMP). 
Soquel Creek Instream Flow 
Lagunitas Creek Instream Flow 
Lagunitas Creek Syncaris Survey 

IV. PLANNING EXPERIENCE
Loomis Planning Commission 1986-1990.

Chaired Planning Commission during Loomis’ first general plan 
Member Loomis General Plan update committee 1996? 
Member Placer County Technical Advisory Committee on flooding 1991-1992? 

V. MEMBERSHIPS
American Fisheries Society Life member since 1986.
National Audubon society Life member since 1984.
Nature Conservancy Life member since 1985.
Madrone Audubon Society Corresponding Secretary 2014-2016
West Sonoma County Christmas Bird Count Deputy leader and co-compiler 2014-present

VI. AWARDS:
2008 - United States Department of Commerce Bronze Medal for Superior Federal Service
Awarded for precedent-setting verification of non-compliance with Endangered Species Act
requirements to protect listed fish from timber harvest impacts.  Bronze MedaL is the
highest award within NOAA.

2008 –Two NOAA Office for Law Enforcement challenge coins. 

VII. TRAINING:
• Stream temperature model, taught personally by Dr. Fred Theurer 1981.
• Certified Swiftwater Rescue Technician, Rescue Three, Sonora, CA June 10, 1984.
• IFG 205 – Field course in IFIM, Cooperative Instream Flow Group, Ft. Collins,

CO., 1984
• IFG 210 – Computer course in IFIM, Cooperative Instream Flow Group, Ft. Collins,

CO., 1984
• IFG 215 – Problem solving in IFIM, Cooperative Instream Flow Group, Ft. Collins,

CO., 1984.
• Habitat Suitability Development Workshop. Cooperative Instream Flow Group, Ft.

Collins, CO., December 8-12, 1984
• IFG 310 – Advanced IFIM, Cooperative Instream Flow Group, Ft. Collins, CO.,

1985
• Expert Witness Seminar, James L. Merrill, Esquire, Cal/Neva Chapter of the

American Fisheries Society, Sacramento, CA 1988.
• Wetlands Delineation, Cal/Neva Chapter of the American Fisheries Society, 1989.
• Wetlands Hydrology by David Rosgen 1994.
• Endangered Species Act training, Johnson 2001
• National Environmental Protection Act training 2003
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• Federal Power Act training 2004
• HEC-RAS training 2005
• River 2D workshop, American Fisheries Society, San Francisco, CA September

2007.
• NOAA certification in small boat handling 2008.

VIII PARTIAL LIST OF REPORTS, PAPERS AND PUBLICATIONS: 

Aquatic Systems Research et. al. 1990.  Instream Flow Investigation of Lee Vining Creek, 
Mono County, California.  Stream Evaluation Series, Parts 1 and 2, California Department 
of Fish and Game.  

Li, Stacy K. 2018.  Site visit and assessment of Nevada Irrigation District’s Auburn Ravine 
1 dam. 

Li, Stacy K. 2017.  Comment letter on the Dogwood Timber Harvest Plan (Dogwood 
THP; 1-15-042 SON Gualala Redwood Timber L.L.C.).  Submitted to CalFire. 

Li, Stacy K. 2016.  Comment letter on the Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) for the 
proposed Knight’s Bridge Winery (PRMD file# UPE13-0046) 

Cluer, Brian L. and Stacy K. Li.2005.  Monitoring sediment delivery to streams following 
vineyard development from forested lands and the effect on steelhead trout.  Final Report, 
Habitat Conservation Division, Southwest Region National Marine Fisheries Service. 

Li, Stacy K. 2010. Achieving California Water Supply and Delta Ecological Improvement 
Simultaneously. Paper presented at the Bay Delta Conference. 

Li, Stacy K., 2012. The Necessary Action to Ensure the Ecological Recovery of the San 
Joaquin Delta Paper presented at the Bay Delta Conference. 

Stacy K. Li and Douglas Parkinson. 2005.  Habitat Inventory and Initial assessment of 
Anthropogenic Sedimentation in Upper Mark West Creek, Sonoma County, California. 
Report prepared for New-Old ways Wholestically Emerging (NOWWE) 

Stacy K. Li and Donald H. Owings.  1978.  Sexual Selection in the three-spined stickleback 
(Gasterosteus aculeatus L.) I. Normative observations.  Zeitschrift fur Tierpsychologie 
46(4): 1439-1446.  

Stacy K. Li and Donald H. Owings.  1978.  Sexual Selection in the three-spined stickleback 
(Gasterosteus aculeatus L.) II. Nest raiding during the courtship phase.  Behaviour 64(3-4) 
298-304.
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Sabrina Marson

From:
Sent: Monday, January 20, 2020 11:01 AM
To: Sabrina Marson
Subject: Re: Santa Rosa Plain GSA - Advisory Committee application

[This message has originated from outside of West Yost] 

Sabrina: 

Bullets 1 and 3 are redundant, so here is my answer to both. 

I have been thinking about water professionally since 1980 those experiences has given me a broad perspective with 
water resources. 
I also served as the Chairman of the Loomis Planning Commission, so I am familiar with the planning process and land 
use issues. 
The GSA Advisory Committee should consider groundwater questions in relation to the broader perspective of the 
hydrologic cycle 
to avoid the ever‐present threat of unintended consequences.  I would bring both the ecological and land use planning 
perspectives to the committee’s work.  The advisory 
Committee should identify not only problems but also opportunities so that issues are addressed in a meaningful and 
comprehensive manner. 
I am known as a collaborator and I can help your agency. 

References: 

Wayne Fields, 

Doug Parkinson, Parkinson and Associates, 

Susan Kirks, President of Madrone Audubon Society, 

Peter Leveque, West Sonoma County Christmas Bird Count Coordinator, 

Thank you for your interest, 

Stacy  

On Jan 20, 2020, at 9:02 AM, Sabrina Marson <> wrote: 

Dr Stacy Li, 

I am writing to follow up on the below email regarding your incomplete application for the 
environmental representative seat that is open on the Santa Rosa Plain Groundwater Sustainability 
Agency (GSA) Advisory Committee. Please submit the below information to me 
by 10 am on January 21. 

 Describe how you will represent this interest group and communicate with other
members of this interest group
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At least 2 names and contact information

 Please explain your reasons for wishing to serve and, in your opinion, how you feel you
can contribute

If you have any questions, please let me know. 

Thank you, 
Sabrina Marson  
Administrative Assistant 

Santa Rosa Plain Groundwater Sustainability Agency (GSA) 

From: Sabrina Marson  
Sent: Wednesday, January 15, 2020 2:46 PM 
To: stacy li
Subject: Santa Rosa Plain GSA ‐ Advisory Committee application 

Dr. Stacy Li, 

Thank you for your interest in the environmental representative seat that is open on the Santa Rosa 
Plain Groundwater Sustainability Agency (GSA) Advisory Committee. 

Upon review of your application submitted on November 25, 2019, we have determined it is 
incomplete. The application form requests the following information and documentation. We have 
highlighted the incomplete portions of your application. If you are still interested in environmental 
representative seat, please submit the additional information by 10 am on January 21. 

If you have any questions, or are no longer interested in the environmental representative seat on the 
Santa Rosa Plain GSA Advisory Committee, please let us know. 

Thank you, 

References
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Members must live or work within the Santa Rosa Plain Groundwater Basin or represent 
an organization with a presence in Santa Rosa Plain Groundwater Basin, identified by 
the Department of Water Resources current Bulletin 118, to be eligible to participate.
Describe how you will represent this interest group and communicate with other members 
of this interest group
Current Occupation
Within the last 12 months
Current License(s)
Professional or occupational, date of issues / expiration, including status
Education / Experience
Other Board / Commission / Committee on which you Serve / have Served
Name / Date of Service
Letters of Support
References
At least 2 names and contact information
Please explain your reasons for wishing to serve and, in your opinion, how you feel you can 
contribute
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Sabrina Marson

From:
Sent:
To:
Cc:
Subject:

Thank you, Bob!   
Andy 

Andy Rodgers  
Administrator 
Santa Rosa Plain Groundwater Sustainability Agency (GSA) 

From: Bob Coey ‐ NOAA Federal 
Sent: Monday, November 25, 2019 4:05 PM 
To: Andy Rodgers 
Cc: Rick Rogers 
Subject: nomination of Stacy Li for the SRP Technical Advisory Committee 

[This message has originated from outside of West Yost] 

Dear Mr. Rodgers: 

This letter conveys NOAA’s National Marine Fisheries Service’s (NMFS) support for Stacy Li as an 
environmental representative on the Santa Rosa Plain (SRP) Technical Advisory Committee (Advisory 
Committee).  The Advisory Committee provides input and feedback on policies, programs and projects to the 
Board of the SRP Groundwater Sustainability Agency to ensure compliance with California’s Sustainable 
Groundwater Management Act of 2015. 

Stacy has worked for decades as an expert in freshwater aquatic science, including previous employment with 
NMFS, and as an environmental consultant in Sonoma County.  He is knowledgeable in both federal and state 
environmental laws (e.g., Endangered Species Act, CEQA, etc.), as well as groundwater hydrology and surface 
water/groundwater interaction.  Additionally, Stacy also has past experience in local government, having acted 
as a Planning Commissioner for the Town of Loomis, California.  As a life-time member of the American 
Fisheries Society, National Audubon Society, and The Nature Conservancy, Stacy will bring a wealth of 
environmental knowledge and experience to the SRP Advisory Committee. 

Sonoma County in general, and the SRP in particular, are blessed with abundant natural resources and diverse 
ecosystems.  Having someone on the Advisory Committee who understands both the science of Groundwater 
Dependent Ecosystems, as well as the varied requirements of state and federal environmental laws would be an 
asset to the process.  I support Stacy Li as an environmental representative on the SRP Technical Advisory 
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Committee, and feel his vast knowledge and experience would benefit Sonoma County’s future groundwater 
management efforts. Thank you for your consideration. 

Sincerely,        

Bob Coey 
North Coast Branch Chief California Coastal Office 

‐‐  
Robert Coey  
North Coast Branch Chief, California Coastal Office   
NOAA Fisheries , West Coast Region 
U.S. Department of Commerce 

Agenda Item: 7C, Attachment 1 
Meeting Date: February 13, 2020 66



Madrone Audubon Society 
I N C O R P O R A T E D  

 S u b m i t t e d  b y  e m a i l
November 29, 2019 

Santa Rosa Plain Groundwater Sustainability Agency 
Attention:  Andy Rodgers, GSA Administrator 

Re:  Support letter for Application – Dr. Stacy Li 

Dear Members of the GSA Board and Advisory Committee: 

We are writing to express strong support for Dr. Stacy Li’s application to serve as an Environment 
representative on the Advisory Committee. 

Dr. Li’s background and cumulative experience, detailed in his application/Curriculum Vitae, reflect a 
perspective that would complement existing Committee membership. 

Madrone Audubon Society has remained apprised of hydrology issues in Sonoma County, including following 
California’s statewide priorities via the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA) effective in 2015. 
We view the Santa Rosa Plain GSA, other County area GSA’s and Advisors, as critically important to 
management decisions and sustainability of Sonoma County’s natural resources and quality of life.   

Dr. Li has been a member of Madrone Audubon Society in Sonoma County for many years.  He served as an 
Officer on our Board of Directors 2014-2016 as Corresponding Secretary.  Dr. Li established innovative 
methods for our Chapter communication, to serve the approximately 3000 Audubon members in Sonoma 
County.  Subsequently, from 2014-present (and continuing), Dr. Li serves as Co-Coordinator with Dr. Peter 
Leveque and Co-Compiler of our Chapter’s West Sonoma County Christmas Bird Count.  His role includes 
detailed coordination, verification and submission of data to the National Audubon Society for this longstanding 
national citizen science research database 

Dr. Li has provided his experience on environmental matters to our Chapter and, based on his reliability and in-
depth multi-faceted areas of knowledge, he would contribute valuable input to the Advisory Committee to the 
Santa Rosa Plain Groundwater Sustainability Agency.  We offer this enthusiastic expression of support for Dr. 
Li’s application to serve on the committee and respectfully request your serious consideration. 

Sincerely, 

Susan Kirks 
President 
Madrone Audubon Society       
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Application for Groundwater Sustainability Agency Advisory Committee 

First and Last Name 

David M. Noren 

Describe how you meet Eligibility (address of home or business) link to basin map 

 I live at  

 I work for EBA Engineering 

 

For which Interest-group Seat would you like to be considered? 
Applicant can select more than one interest 

  Environmental representative (2 seats available) 

◻ Rural residential well owner - domestic water primary use (2 seats available)

◻ Business community representative (1 seat available)

◻ Agricultural interest (surface water or GW user) (2 seats available)

Describe how you will represent this interest group and communicate with other 

members of this interest group. 

I am a co-founder of the Sebastopol Water Information Group (SWiG) which is a local 

community based watershed group that has for many years been working towards 

sustainable groundwater use in the Santa Rosa Plain.  SWiG has worked extensively with the 

City of Sebastopol to advocate for a knowledge based approach to groundwater 

management.  SWiG is also a charter member of the Sonoma County Water Coalition which 

represents water advocacy through Sonoma County and the North Coast with 12 member 

organizations and over 20 supporting organizations.  As an active member of SWiG and with 

affiliation with the Sonoma County Water Coalition, I will provide active and current interaction 

to represent the interest of these groups through individual and group outreach at regularly 

scheduled meetings and active outreach.   

Current Occupation 
I am the Vice President of Environmental Services at EBA Engineering in Santa Rosa.  I have 
worked for EBA Engineering for 23 years and manage and oversee a wide variety of 
environmental and engineering projects.   

Current License(s) 
Professional or occupational, date of issues / expiration, including status 
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Education / Experience 
Education:  B.S. Agricultural Science & Management 

U.C. Davis 1989

M.S. Environmental Management
University of San Francisco 2013

Experience 

I have lived in Sonoma County most of my life.  For the past 30 years I have lived with my family 
in the unincorporated area south of Sebastopol.  I am the owner of a domestic water supply well 
and have a vested interest in the prudent and equitable management of groundwater resources in 
Sonoma County.   

I have also worked for the past 25 years as an environmental consultant in Sonoma County.  For 
the past 23 years I have worked for EBA Engineering, a local environmental engineering firm. 
Projects in which I have worked on include hydrogeologic investigations, groundwater monitoring 
and remediation, land assessments, contaminant cleanup, stormwater monitoring, environmental 
permitting and compliance and others.  I feel my professional experience would be a great asset 
to represent the process pursuant to the Groundwater Sustainability Act.     

In 2010 also I cofounded the Sebastopol Water Information Group (SWiG) when domestic water 
supply wells starting going dry in the area south of Sebastopol.  For the past 15 years I have been 
an active member of SWiG. One of the primary activities that I have undertaken at SWiG is to 
provide semi-annual water level measurements for approximately 15 private water supply wells in 
and around the greater Sebastopol area.  The data set is now being reported to the Sonoma 
County Water Agency and is included in the California Statewide Groundwater Elevation 
Monitoring program.   

I also served as a Board member of the North Coast Regional Water Quality Control Board 
(NCRWQCB) from 2008 until October 2019.  During my time working on the NCRWQCB I was 
involved with staff, the regulated community, industry and environmental interests and the public 
in all things regulatory related to the protection and benefit of groundwater quality on the North 
Coast.  The experience as a Board member was very fulfilling and involved me deeply within the 
regulatory process from the development of new programs such as developing a regulatory 
framework for the cultivation of cannabis, developing a dairy permitting program and a TMDL for 
pathogen impairment of the Russian River or serving the ongoing regulatory oversight and 
permitting duties of the agency.  I am a firm believer that water quality and quantity are inextricably 
linked whether it be surface water or groundwater.  I also believe that there are opportunities for 
the management of water resources in Sonoma County that can be developed and enhanced to 
the benefit of the protection and enhance of these resources. 

Other Board / Commission / Committee on which you Serve / have Served 

North Coast Regional Water Quality Control Board - 2008-2019 

Santa Rosa Junior College Ag Trust Foundation – 2016 to present 
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Letters of Support 
For interest-based seats, applicants are encouraged to demonstrate support from local 
organizations and community groups engaged on issues related to the interest that the 
applicant seeks to represent (i.e. environmental, business, agriculture, rural communities by 
attaching letters of support. Letters of support are not necessary for eligibility, but are welcome 
to demonstrate the applicant’s ability to represent those interests. 
Please list letters here: Organization, Author, Date 

Sonoma County Water Coalition, Signed by Jane Nielson, 11/29/2019 

OWL Foundation, Signed by H.R. Downs, 1/17/2020 

Sarah Gurney, Sebastopol City Council, 1/20/2020 

Russian River Watershed Protection Council, Signed by Brenda Adelman, 1/19/2020 

Copies of the support letters are attached 

References 
Jane Nielson, Ph.D., Professional Geologist 

Rue Furch 

Matt St. John, Executive Officer 
North Coast Regional Water Quality Control Board 

Don Black, Managing Partner 
Anderson Ziegler 
 

Matt Earnshaw, P.G., C.Hg. 
EBA Engineering  

Please explain your reasons for wishing to serve and, in your opinion, how you 
feel you can contribute. 

My desire to serve on the advisory committee is to support the Groundwater 
Sustainability Agency in their goal of formulating a groundwater management plan that 
serves all the stakeholder groups and the environment.  Available information tells us 
that there is between 40,000 to 60,000 domestic, agricultural and municipal wells in 
Sonoma County.  All of these wells are relying upon the shared resource of 
groundwater and it needs to be managed and monitored as a shared resource.  In 
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addition, I believe that there needs to be management towards the enhancement and 
protection of groundwater in the Santa Rosa Plain to protect against degradation of 
water quality. Further, many of our creeks and streams that support endangered 
species are recharged from groundwater and managing for sustainable groundwater 
could also have a positive effect of protecting and enhancing stream flow.  Finally, I 
believe that there are opportunities to enhance groundwater quantity through recharge 
using stormwater that would also be of benefit to our creeks and streams by reducing 
peak flows that have been driven by hydromodification and development of the uplands 
of the watershed. 

I believe that the process of formulating an effective sustainable groundwater 
management plan will benefit from my experience as a member of the environmental 
community, my professional experience as an environmental consultant that has 
worked in Sonoma County for over 25 years and finally as a former member for 11 
years of the North Coast Regional Water Quality Control Board, an agency with 
significant regulatory authority of groundwater quality and quantity issues on the North 
Coast.   

Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions or wish to discuss information 
in this application.  Thank you for the opportunity.    

NOTE: The Agency will keep all applications on file for one year from the date of receipt 
of the application. 
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Subject: Nomina�on for Santa Rosa Plain Groundwater Sustainability Agency's Environmental Seat 
From: Jane Nielson 

Date: 11/29/2019 2:48 PM

To: Andy Rogers 

November 29, 2019

Dear Mr. Rodgers,

The Sonoma County Water Coali�on recommends David Noren be appointed to the empty

Environmental Seat on the Santa Rosa Plain Groundwater Sustainability Agency.  David is an

established environmental professional, who has lived and worked for much of his adult life in the

Santa Rosa Plain.  He has thorough knowledge of the Santa Rosa Plain hydrology and has worked for

many years on hydrogeologic and groundwater inves�ga�ons in the Santa Rosa Plain and northern

California.  Mr. Noren also served for 11 years on the North Coast Regional Water Quality Control

Board and has a through understanding of State and federal groundwater and surface water

regula�ons and the applica�on of regulatory processes to managing and maintaining water quality

and supply for all beneficial uses.

Mr. Noren is also a co-founder of the Sebastopol Water Informa�on Group (SWiG), an organiza�on

affiliated with the Sonoma County Water Coali�on, which brings together virtually all of Sonoma

County’s ci�zen-par�cipant environmental groups.  For the past 12 years, Mr. Noren has overseen and

performed well monitoring for private landowners in the greater Sebastopol area.  The data from his

monitoring program is now part of the CASGEM data set, which the Sonoma County Water Agency

reports to the California Department of Water Resources.

The SCWC knows and trusts David to provide a full understanding of Santa Rosa Plain water and

groundwater issues to the Santa Rosa Plain Groundwater Sustainability Agency.

Sincerely,

=

Jane E. Nielson, Ph.D., PG

for the Sonoma County Water Coali�on

Attachments:

JNSignature-2.pdf 27 bytes

Nomination for Santa Rosa Plain Groundwater Sustainability Agency'...

1 of 1 1/21/2020 8:20 AM
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O.W.L. Foundation 
President, H.R. Downs 

Secretary, Jane Nielson, Ph.D. 
Treasurer, Heidi Dieffenbach-Carle P.E. 

Joan Cooper 
Bonnie Kneibler, M.D. 

1/17/20 
Mr. Andy Rogers  

RE: Environmental Seat on SRPGSA 

Dear Mr. Rogers; 

The O.W.L. Foundation, as a founding member of the Sonoma County Water Coalition, would like to endorse 
Mr. David Noren for the recently vacated Environmental Seat on the Santa Rosa Plain Groundwater 
Sustainability Agency.  

Mr. Noren, as you undoubtedly know, is a distinguished and experienced water professional. He served as a 
Board member of the North Coast Regional Water Quality Control Board for 11 years. He helped found the 
Sebastopol Water information Group (SWiG) and supervises SWiG's yearly well measurement records for west 
county. SWiG is an O.W.L. Foundation project and therefore our Board has had direct experience working with 
Mr. Noren for many years. These annual datasets contribute to SCWA's reports to DWR. 

Mr. Noren's long residence in Sonoma County, his professional expertise in local water issues, and his widely 
recognized ability to translate these skills effectively to working groups, make him an ideal fit to tackle our 
future challenges with groundwater sustainability.  

Thank you for you attention to this important nomination. 

Regards, 

H.R. Downs 
President 
O.W.L. Foundation 
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Subject: Appointment to SR Plain Groundwater Sustainability Agency — Environmental Seat

From: Sarah Gurney

Date: 1/20/2020 10:57 PM

To: Andy Rogers 

CC: David Noren 

January 20, 2020

Andy Rogers

Administrator

Groundwater Sustainability Agency

Santa Rosa Plain

 Re: Appointment of David Noren

Dear Andy:

I recommend the appointment of David Noren to the open environmental seat on the Santa Rosa

Plain Groundwater Sustainability Agency.

I have known David throughout most of my tenure on the Sebastopol City Council. Appointed in 2004

and re-elected four 3mes therea4er, I am currently the longest serving Council Member and four-3me

Mayor. From my long experience in office, I can state that David is a dedicated professional upon

whom I have relied for informa3on, educa3on and advice on water issues.

New to the municipal scene, I needed to learn about Sebastopol's source for water and delivery

system, as well as about the en3re Laguna watershed. I turned to the Sebastopol Water Informa3on

Group (SWIG) for a perspec3ve independent of City Staff. I met David, and other members, and found

him straigh>orward and plain-speaking in his scien3fic informa3on. 

Several 3mes since the beginning of my career, I have turned to David for background informa3on and

addi3onal explana3on on water-related topics.

I have appreciated his reasonable, pa3ent and gracious manner as he shared his professional

exper3se with me, a beginner and generalist in municipal services.  

David will bring invaluable professional exper3se and perspec3ve to your agency. I urge his

appointment to the open seat.

Very truly yours,

Sarah 

Sarah Glade Gurney

Council Member, City of Sebastopol

 

Appointment to SR Plain Groundwater Sustainability Agency — Envi...

1 of 2 1/21/2020 8:18 AM
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RRWPC 

Russian River Watershed Protection Committee 

Mr. Andy Rodgers 

Emailed on 1-19-2020 

Subject: Nomination for Santa Rosa Plain Groundwater Sustainability Agency's 
Environmental Seat 

Dear Mr. Rodgers, 

Russian River Watershed Protection Committee (RRWPC) recommends the appointment 
of David Noren to the vacant Environmental Seat on the Santa Rosa Plain 
Groundwater Sustainability Agency.  David is an environmental professional who has lived 
and worked for much of his adult life in the Santa Rosa Plain.  He is an expert on Santa Rosa 
Plain hydrology and for many years, in fulfillment of his professional responsibilities, has 
conducted hydrogeologic and groundwater investigations in the Santa Rosa Plain and northern 
California.  

Mr. Noren also served for 11 years on the North Coast Regional Water Quality Control Board 
and has a thorough understanding of State and federal groundwater and surface water 
regulations and the application of regulatory processes to managing and maintaining water 
quality and supply for all beneficial uses.  RRWPC has been in existence for 40 years and 
attended most local meetings of that board over that period.  We have had many opportunities 
to present information to the Board on issues that affect the Laguna and Russian River and 
have found David to be highly engaged, knowledgeable, and well prepared on a multitude of 
issues that came before the board during his tenure. He is also very considerate of all those who 
made presentations before him and open to hearing both positive and negative concerns on all 
issues. 

RRWPC knows and trusts David to bring a deep and well-grounded understanding of Santa Rosa 
Plain water and groundwater issues to the Santa Rosa Plain Groundwater Sustainability 
Agency.  We urge his appointment to this GSA position. 

Sincerely, 
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Brenda Adelman: Chair 
Russian River Watershed Protection Committee 
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SONOMA COUNTY CHAPTER 

December 13, 2019 

To:  Andy Rogers, Administrator and Lynda Hopkins, Chair, the Santa Rosa Plain 
Groundwater Sustainability Agency 

From:  CAFF/Farmers Guild Sonoma County 

Re: Environmental Seat on the Santa Rosa Plain Groundwater Sustainability Agency. 

Community Alliance with Family Farmers (CAFF)/ the Farmers Guild, are united in a statewide 
organizations of farmers, ranchers and sustainable food system advocates who work to create more 
resilient family farms, communities and ecosystems.  

The Community Alliance with Family Farmers (CAFF) recommends David Noren be appointed to the 
empty Environmental Seat on the Santa Rosa Plain Groundwater Sustainability Agency.  David is an 
established environmental professional, who has lived and worked for much of his adult life in the 
Santa Rosa Plain.  He has thorough knowledge of the Santa Rosa Plain hydrology and has worked 
for many years on hydrogeologic and groundwater investigations in the Santa Rosa Plain and 
northern California.  Mr. Noren also served for 11 years on the North Coast Regional Water Quality 
Control Board and has a thorough understanding of State and federal groundwater and surface water 
regulations and the application of regulatory processes to managing and maintaining water quality 
and supply for all beneficial uses.  Among his other interests, he worked on issues affecting the 
agricultural community while on the North Coast Board. 

Mr. Noren is a co-founder of the Sebastopol Water Information Group (SWiG), an organization 
affiliated with the Sonoma County Water Coalition, which brings together virtually all of Sonoma 
County's citizen-participant, science-based environmental groups.  For the past 12 years, Mr. Noren 
has overseen and performed well monitoring for private landowners in the greater Sebastopol 
area.  The data from his monitoring program is now part of the CASGEM data set, which the Sonoma 
County Water Agency reports to the California Department of Water Resources. 

CAFF believes that David is uniquely well qualified to fill this seat. He will provide a full understanding 
of Santa Rosa Plain water and groundwater issues as well as the needs and concerns of the farming 
community to the Santa Rosa Plain Groundwater Sustainability Agency. 

Thank you for your consideration of this letter of recommendation. 

Wendy Krupnick       

Vice President, CAFF Sonoma County       

Agenda Item: 7C, Attachment 1 
Meeting Date: February 13, 2020 78



From: Sarah Gurney
To: Andy Rodgers
Cc: David Noren; Sabrina Marson
Subject: Re: Appointment to SR Plain Groundwater Sustainability Agency — Environmental Seat
Date: Tuesday, January 21, 2020 8:28:56 AM

[This message has originated from outside of West Yost]

Thank you, Andy, for confirming receipt. I've contacted you by email only, because there 
wasn't enough time to mail a hard copy letter. I hope my email will suffice. If you need 
anything more, I am available to check email again later this afternoon, after a series of 
meetings.

Best regards,

Sarah
Sarah Glade Gurney
Council Member, City of Sebastopol
2020 The Year of Possibilities

On Tue, Jan 21, 2020 at 6:58 AM Andy Rodgers wrote:
Thanks Sarah. Received!
Andy 

Message sent from phone

On Jan 20, 2020, at 10:58 PM, Sarah Gurney  wrote:

January 20, 2020

Andy Rogers
Administrator
Groundwater Sustainability Agency
Santa Rosa Plain

     Re: Appointment of David Noren

Dear Andy:

I recommend the appointment of David Noren to the open environmental seat 
on the Santa Rosa Plain Groundwater Sustainability Agency.

I have known David throughout most of my tenure on the Sebastopol City 
Council. Appointed in 2004 and re-elected four times thereafter, I am currently
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the longest serving Council Member and four-time Mayor. From my long
experience in office, I can state that David is a dedicated professional upon
whom I have relied for information, education and advice on water issues.

New to the municipal scene, I needed to learn about Sebastopol's source for
water and delivery system, as well as about the entire Laguna watershed. I
turned to the Sebastopol Water Information Group (SWIG) for a perspective
independent of City Staff. I met David, and other members, and found him
straightforward and plain-speaking in his scientific information. 

Several times since the beginning of my career, I have turned to David for
background information and additional explanation on water-related topics.

I have appreciated his reasonable, patient and gracious manner as he shared his
professional expertise with me, a beginner and generalist in municipal
services.  

David will bring invaluable professional expertise and perspective to your
agency. I urge his appointment to the open seat.

Very truly yours,

Sarah 
Sarah Glade Gurney
Council Member, City of Sebastopol
2020 The Year of Possibilities
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Sabrina Marson

From: Andy Rodgers
Sent: Friday, November 29, 2019 7:54 PM
To: Sabrina Marson
Subject: Fwd: Nomination for Santa Rosa Plain Groundwater Sustainability Agency's Environmental Seat 
Attachments: JNSignature-2.pdf; ATT00001.htm

Message sent from phone 

Begin forwarded message: 

From: Jane Nielson
Date: November 29, 2019 at 2:48:39 PM PST 
To: Andy Rodgers 
Subject: Nomination for Santa Rosa Plain Groundwater Sustainability Agency's Environmental Seat 

November 29, 2019 

Dear Mr. Rodgers, 

The Sonoma County Water Coalition recommends David Noren be appointed to the empty 
Environmental Seat on the Santa Rosa Plain Groundwater Sustainability Agency.  David is an established 
environmental professional, who has lived and worked for much of his adult life in the Santa Rosa 
Plain.  He has thorough knowledge of the Santa Rosa Plain hydrology and has worked for many years on 
hydrogeologic and groundwater investigations in the Santa Rosa Plain and northern California.  Mr. 
Noren also served for 11 years on the North Coast Regional Water Quality Control Board and has a 
through understanding of State and federal groundwater and surface water regulations and the 
application of regulatory processes to managing and maintaining water quality and supply for all 
beneficial uses. 

Mr. Noren is also a co‐founder of the Sebastopol Water Information Group (SWiG), an organization 
affiliated with the Sonoma County Water Coalition, which brings together virtually all of Sonoma 
County’s citizen‐participant environmental groups.  For the past 12 years, Mr. Noren has overseen and 
performed well monitoring for private landowners in the greater Sebastopol area.  The data from his 
monitoring program is now part of the CASGEM data set, which the Sonoma County Water Agency 
reports to the California Department of Water Resources. 

The SCWC knows and trusts David to provide a full understanding of Santa Rosa Plain water and 
groundwater issues to the Santa Rosa Plain Groundwater Sustainability Agency. 

Sincerely, 
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Jane E. Nielson, Ph.D., PG 
for the Sonoma County Water Coalition 
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11/18/19   

Karen Norman-Boudreau 

My family resides at .  This is on the edge of the Laguna de Santa Rosa.   I have 
lived continuously in the area since 1980 and at our current location since 1986.   
We own two properties that border the Laguna with wells and have depended on 
these for all that time for our water.  In addition I owned and operated a business 
with a lease for the City of Santa Rosa for 14 years in which our sole source of 
water was tertiary treated waste water from the Santa Rosa treatment facility on 
Llano Rd.    I understand you have an opening on the board for an 
Environmental Representative for which I would like to submit my application. 

I am applying for this position because I have a keen interest in our watershed 
and the environment that all those within this area share both flora and fauna.   
Be it a while ago, I attended several colleges earning a BA, MS and a PhD and 
have had relevant classes in ecology, limnology, animal science, civil 
engineering, toxicology and a host of relevant biology classes.   I have be a front 
row witness to the climate changes as well as social changes in our micro 
environment called Sonoma County.    

Since its inception of the board.    I have followed the development and actionsi 
of the (GSA) Groundwater management group.   I deeply care about our water 
resources and would provide a more inclusive concern about its management 
than someone currently in a governmental position who's expertise and views 
are influenced by policy and departmental procedure.  I have attended most of 
the open meetings and found them to be mostly about regulation and 
implementation when the fundamental question of the where the water comes 
from that makes up the resource being debated largely ignored.   For this 
reason, I would like to contribute my voice on behalf of the water cycles 
themselves - uses and recharge, not the who is going to pay and how much.   I 
think I would bring a needed balance to this debate. 

I am 65 years old, semi retired and have a interesting collection of businesses in 
my past.  All have been related to the aquatic environment.  I have had small 
company that raised fish for toxicology,  a wholesale aquatic plant nursery that 
covered much of the state, a large scale business that sold small fish tanks to 
the likes of Target and Walgreen's which at its height had 22 distributors in 4 
countries.   I have served on diverse boards because I felt it my duty to give 
back and would like to do so again because our watershed is our future.   I 
understand the regulatory side of water and wastewater use, discharge permits 
etc.  I have a better than most knowlege of water quality and legal limits.   I 
would like to use this experience to contribute in a positive way to the watershed 
management of our county and its future.    I feel that our groundwater is a 
critical piece of the 
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events that will shape our county for its future residents, hopefully my 
grandchildren. 

My current license list is short.  I have a Nursery Growers license from Sonoma 
County Agriculture Dept. and well as an Organic Growers license.   I grow small 
quantities of organic produce and herbs in the county for local consumption as 
well a few medicinal herbs (Sonoma County Herb Exchange).  I have a number 
of jobs I do part time which offer me the flexibility to complete any tasks required 
of me by the Board.   I have done public speaking and play well with others.  In 
my lifetime I have managed over 100 employees (the most was 20 at one time) 
as well as business constituents.   I have been blessed to have a unique and 
diverse career and very willing to supplement my deficient by studying and 
learning about topics which I am unfamiliar. 

Thank you for your consideration. 
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Dr. Karen Norman-Boudreau 
   

Position sought:   Enviornmental Representative for the Santa Rosa Plain GSA 

Qualifications: 

I have a broad background in the field of aquatic sciences both from an applied viewpoint 
and considerable academic coursework.   I have had the unique opportunity to use 
biology in my day to day life and as a livelihood.  I have lived in Northern California for 
over 35 years and am very familiar with the marine and freshwater resources.  I spent 
over 10 years working with toxicology labs in providing larval fish for bioassay testing.    I 
have also been able to utilize tertiary treated wastewater in my aquatic plant production 
and am intimately familiar with the controversy and regulation of its use.    I have 
developed coursework, training manuals, and business strategies, done public speaking 
both for the lay and technical audiences, coordinated efforts with multinational 
companies, state and federal level agencies.  I am adept at working both independently 
and in groups.      .    

Education 

UCD, Davis, CA. PhD Nutrition (79-83) Relevant Coursework: Teaching Animal Science, 
Animal Energetics, Intermediate Metabolism of Animals, Comparative Physiology of 
Digestion, Basic Nutrition, Physiological Chemistry. 

University of Washington, Seattle, WA M.S. Fisheries (76-78) Relevant Coursework: 
Aquatic Ecology, Biological Waste Treatment,, Economically Important Crustacea, 
Economically Important Mollusks, Statistics, Environmental Effects of Waste Water 

UCI, Irvine California (74-75) Physiology, Genetics, Marine Ecology, Physiology, 
Sensory Physiology, Basic Statistics, Developmental Biology, Productivity Ecology 

UCLA, Los Angeles, CA, B.A. Biology (72-74 & 75-76) Ecology, Invertebrate 
Endocrinology, Marine Invertebrate Biology, Oceanography, Biochemistry, Introductory 
Biology 

Relevant Experience 

C.E.O. Living Aquatic Resources, Inc. Several Divisions (86- present)

Nursery: Wholesale business plant propagation, preparation and delivery of 30,000 
plants annually to retail nurseries throughout Northern California. 
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Relevant Experience cont. 

AquaBabies - www.aquababies.com small ecosystems designed to require minimal 
maintenance. Licensed 24 companies, US, Canada, South Africa, England and China for 
the production and distribution, Maintain web store and main office support for network. 
Over 3,000,000 sold world wide. 

Bioassay Organism Production: Produced over 100,000 fish larvae annual for use in 
toxicology testing both by private and public research organizations.  

Instructor - Santa Rosa Community College (86-93) Small scale fish farming and 
Aquaculture: Developed course material and field trips.  

Other Experience 

Bioassay Manager - Anatec Labs Supervised and evaluated toxological studies using 
biological indicator species.  Responsibilities included Quality Control, Statistical Analysis 
and report production. 

Seasonal Aide, California Dept. of Fish and Game Worked on tracking and collecting 
catch data on commercially important big game fish  

Research Associate, Government of Canada: Fulfilled a one year contract to determine 
the seasonal death of commercially farmed abalone on Vancouver Island. 

Biological Consultant for various Indian Projects: Worked as consultant for Yurok Indians 
of the Klamath River, CA, and developed economic model for the Ya-Ka-Ama Indian 
Center in Forestville, CA. Also short project for the Yakutat Indians of Alaska 

Board Member California Aquaculture Association for a number of years which involved 
government-farming consideration on an industry level. 

References Available Upon Request 
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Applicant 
Lives or works in 
Santa Rosa Plain? Resume

# Letters of 
Support

Additional 
Materials

Environmental 
Seat

Lamb, Beth

Yes.
(On the Sonoma County fish 

and Wildlife commission) Yes 2 0 X
Li, Dr. Stacy Yes Yes 2 0 X
Noren, David Yes Yes 5 0 X
Norman-Boudreau, Karen Yes Yes 0 0 X
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